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Stealth Global Holdings is an Australian multinational distribution group providing workplace consumable
products and supply chain solutions to business customers. As a supplier and distributor, we offer a
comprehensive assortment of products to support customers with purchasing options and solutions that are
essential in the operation of their business.
Our diversified product portfolio of distributed brands, proprietary brands and bespoke brands are focussed on
Safety, Industrial and Workplace product categories, sold to the Industrial, Trade and Retail customer markets.
The group serves approximately 3,000 customers, large and small, across a variety of industry sectors including
resources, transportation, industrial, manufacturing, engineering, construction, contracting, trade retail, and
general workplace environments.
Headquartered in Perth, the group operates in Australia, UK, Africa, Asia, Europe under three competitive brands,
Heatleys Safety and Industrial, Industrial Supply Group, and BSA Brands (UK) a joint venture with Bisley Workwear.
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Chairman’s Statement

To our Shareholders
I begin this annual Chairman’s letter with a sense of pride about our company and the wonderful strides that it has taken since
its listing on 2 October last year. The past year has been one of significant transformation.
In 2019, we continued to accelerate investment in acquisitions, products, services and technology. For example, we extended
our presence in several Australian States, planted the company’s flag in the United Kingdom (UK), via our BSA Brands
partnership and undertook the soft launch on the Amazon platform with our Bisley range of workwear in the UK.
The past 12 months has been a whirlwind of activity for Stealth and its associated entities. Stealth’s business model requires a
combination of organic and acquisitive growth to achieve our strategic aims. I believe we have ticked the boxes in this regard
over the course of the past year.
Short lines of communication within the business, added with the capacity to act nimbly, means the company has been
able to quickly seize opportunities as they have arisen. Obviously, the company incurred costs in the undertaking of these
initiatives, but they will start to bear fruit from 2020.
Your company is much stronger than it was just 12 months ago. It has a significantly improved portfolio of competitive
businesses and an enviable level of potential scalability, which we will, of course, exploit.
Our 2019 strategic highlights include:
• Listing on the Australian Stock Exchange (ASX) in October 2018.
• Acquired Heatleys Safety & Industrial in Western Australia and South Australia; almost trebling our revenue and
significantly increasing capability.
• Integrated the Australian operations of Stealth / Heatleys completed 31 December 2018.
• Entered into 50:50 joint venture with Bisley Workwear in the United Kingdom (UK).
• Acquired Industrial Supply Group (ISG) in May 2019; providing an east coast - Australia-wide distribution network.
The Heatleys business - which was acquired immediately post listing - was successfully transitioned into Stealth in a
remarkably short time and has continued to thrive and improve its profit under Stealth’s stewardship.
The ISG acquisition (a major distribution group with a footprint across the Australian continent) has - among other things
- given us better buying power and the new ability to tender for major national contracts. If we had started from scratch to
achieve this important outcome, many millions of dollars in investment would have been required and it would have taken
some years to achieve the position we are in today. ISG makes a small profit in its own right and your management and board
see its contribution to the bottom line only improving in the future.
The BSA Brand co-venture with that great Australian brand, Bisley Workwear, is off to a sterling start. The company has already
rolled out its range of tough Aussie workwear to more than 50 stores in the UK Troy Group’s 420 strong network, with a target
of 80 stores by December 2019. Great merchandising has seen our products prominently displayed in the Troy stores and we
are currently looking at ways to acquire even more floor space to increase sales. The Bisley range has been well-received in the
UK and a comprehensive marketing and retail strategy has been implemented to back our push into this market.
Our 2019 financial highlights include:
• Statutory reported Revenue increased by almost $39.6 million to $63.1 million with Proforma 12 month revenue at $74.6 million.
• On a like for like annual growth basis, Proforma group sales for the year were up 13%, driven by the successful attainment of
various new medium sized and big customers.
• Statutory reported underlying earnings before interest and taxation (EBIT) were $1.9 million (Proforma $2.4 million),
before investment costs, marketing costs in the UK and some other unusual items and was firmly in line with our April
guidance this year.
• Net Assets of $12.9 million with a Net Cash position of $0.4 million and $7.4 million of working capital facilities available to
support organic growth initiatives.
• Gross profit margin in the Australian business (where 70% of sales are generated) was up from 29% to 29.3%, which reflects
synergies obtained from the Stealth and Heatleys consolidation and a prudent level of cost control.
• Gross Profit margin in our UK business have increased through establishing a new strategic joint venture with Bisley
Workwear attaining factory direct pricing, while we have seen some decline in margins centred around our African
operations. To offset the African reduction, our recently established Group Business Development team is focussed on
acquiring new, bigger accounts lifting gross profit dollar contribution and the team has already made some strong inroads
in this regard.
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Our 2020 priorities directly support our customers, suppliers, team members and shareholders:
• Leverage group business combinations to strengthen our competitiveness and extend our sales and service offerings to
build the best Australian multinational distribution group in our markets.
• Focus on existing business units growing existing markets and business units where we leverage our position.
• Continue to develop customer markets and product offering ensure long-term repeat success in our markets with our
existing and new customers and developing more brand business partners.
• Expand our operating platform to provide scaled benefits and improve efficiency & effectiveness of our activities to serve
our customers and business partners.
• Acquire complementary businesses growing portfolio capabilities, diversity, market share and earnings profile.
• Complete the reset of our Africa sales and services model.
May I take the opportunity to thank shareholders for their steadfast support of the company.
As I said in the Chairman’s letter last year, your board and management knows that you do not invest in the company for
practice and neither do we. I believe the share price does not at all reflect the value and potential of the company and I aim to
be on the share register for the full journey of this innovative, exciting business.
I would like to thank my board colleagues, John Groppoli and Peter Unsworth, and our Company Secretary Karen Logan for
their hard work and important contributions.
Lastly, I would like to thank and pay respect to our Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer, Mike Arnold, and the
wonderful executives and staff. Mike has formed an absolutely first class team to take the business forward. He leads from the
front and by example.

Chris Wharton AM
Chairman
September 27, 2019
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Company Overview

Organisation Business Units – where we compete
Headquartered in Perth, Western Australia, the group operates in Australia, UK, Africa, Asia, Europe
under three main competitive brands as shown below.

Parent Company

Australia

United Kingdom BSA Brands (UK)
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Malaysia
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Financial Highlights
Our last 12 months has been the most transformative year in Stealth’s corporate history. Undertaking two
acquisitions and the establishment of a Joint Venture in the UK supports our growth strategy to achieve
$200m in revenue at 8% EBITDA margin by 2024 through organic, partnership and acquisitive pathways.

63.1m

74.6m

12.9m

$

$

$

Statutory Revenue
(2018: $23.5m).

Proforma Revenue based on a full
12 months inclusive of acquisitions
undertaken.

Net Assets
(2018: ($0.6m)).

1.9m

2.4m

6.3m

$

$

$

Statutory Underlying EBIT before
unusual cost items totalling $0.8m.

Proforma Underlying operating EBIT
before unusual cost items and IPO
transaction costs.

Inventory value held
(2018: $0.3m).

0.52m

0.84m

0.4m

$

$

$

Statutory NPAT attributable to the
members (up 205%).

Proforma NPAT attributable to the
members.

Net Cash Position
$7.4 million of working capital finance
facilities available to support organic
growth and other strategic endeavours.
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FY19 Strategic Achievements
Summary

2 Oct 18
ASX release

2 Oct 18
ASX release

Financial Comments

Listed on the
ASX Australian
Stock Exchange

Official listing to the ASX

• Raising $12.5m

Acquisition
of Heatleys Safety
& Industrial

Doubled the size of our business ~$44m annual
sales added

• $7.75mcash

Strong Western Australia foundations 30 year history

• $1.9m debt (wc facility)

• $1.25mscript

2,500+ customers
9,500sqm of distribution facilities including
4,000sqm primary distribution centre in Perth,
Western Australia
~$5.3m inventory in distribution network

7 Feb 19
ASX release

28 Feb 19
ASX release

21 Mar 19
ASX release

Integrated
Australian
operations of
Stealth/Heatleys
completed
31 December

Delivered on plan

Sales growth
for H1-19 at double
digit levels

+13%overall

50:50 joint venture
entered into with
Bisley Workwear
in the United
Kingdom

Bisley is Australia’s market leader in workwear apparel • ~$1.1m cash investment
with ~$100m sales
in FY19

68 customers and 112 suppliers transferred to Heatleys
Sales uplift from 68 customers transferred
Supplier, distribution and back office consolidation
Leveraged combined buying power

18% Australia operations
Expanded in our geographical markets Australia, Africa, UK

Entry to UK and Africa markets with plans for Europe
Appointed large customer group - access to
400 tradestores
4 distributors chosen in Ghana, Mali, Tanzania,
Burkina Faso

Acquisition
of Industrial Supply
Group in May 2019

~$2m annual revenue contribution

ASX release

Year End
30 June 19

Transformation
year of growth

~$40m increase in statutory sales

17 April 19
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• ~$0.5m pa savings
identified in prospectus
and delivered

• Sales of $36m vs $32m
pcp assumes combined
Stealth + Heatleys

• ~$0.4m new investment
FY20 on marketing,
promotion, brand
awareness campaigns.

• $1.0m cash deal

• $0.5m upfront payment
with 50% of the balance
Low cost entry for 27 new locations Australia-wide
paid end of year 1 and
Provides Australia wide service delivery footprint
remaining $ paid at end
year 2.
Growth opportunity internationally and new products
Multinational buying group with 27yr trading history

• Statutory Sales of
$63.1m vs $23.5m pcp
~$1.5m increase in statutory underlying operating EBITDA
• Statutory Underlying
~6% gross margin improvement 24.3% FY19 vs 18.5% pcp
Operating EBITDA of
Implementation of strong diversified operating model
~$2.4m before IPO
costs, acquisition & JV
Significant value added to capability and
related costs
value proposition
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FY19 Transformation Period of Growth
Growth

30 June 2018

30 June 2019
Statutory Sales to customers
based in Australia

Statutory Revenue
80

$39.6 million

50

$38.5 million

Employees
200

114

70
40

60
50

150

30

40

100
20

30
20

50

10

10
0

0

Customers
3000

~2920

0

Suppliers
2000

~1380

2500

Distribution locations
50

39

40

1500
2000

30
1500

1000
20

1000
500

10

500
0

0

Own branch office
trade store locations
10

7

Inventory on hand in
distribution centres
8
7

8

6

2

5

3

15

$13.6 million

12
9
6
3

2
1

0

$6.0 million

Net Assets

6

4
4

0

0

0
-3

1. The above figures are indicative, unaudited and based on management estimates only. Revenue will not reconcile back to statutory audited accounts as
figures are based on management run rates only. Acquisition of Heatleys completed 27 September 2018.
2. Number of employees as at June 2019.
3. Distribution locations (direct) includes the groups own operations, ISG 27 members, 7 international partners only.
4.Inventory on Hand includes main 4,000sqm Distribution Centre of Heatleys in Western Australia, and all branch locations in Bassendean, Kalgoorlie,
Bunbury, Tweed Heads, Adelaide, Malaysia and in the UK for BSA Brands (JV with Bisley Workwear)
5. Customer excludes those serviced by subsidiary Australian Workplace Supplies whereby single sales are made to small business owners.
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Business Model
Integrated service portfolio with key sales and distribution verticals

Manufacturer/ Supplier

Product Source & Procure

Primary Activities

Distributed Brands

Proprietary Brands

Bespoke Brands

Distribution & Logistics

Inbound Logistics

Warehousing
Distribution Centres

Branch Offices
Trade Store Outlets
Distributors
Vending Machines
Onsite Solutions

Delivery

Sales & Marketing

Sales and Service Reps

Vending Machines

Branch & Trade
Network

Website, EDI
and Online

Customer Service
Technical Support

Catalogues

Onsite Solutions
Distributors

Click and Collect

Customer

Reseller

Working in partnership with leading manufacturers, brands and specialist suppliers

Stealth Global Holdings Annual Report 2019 

11

Group Facts

160

40,000

5

Employees
53% male / 47% Female.

Products are held in our Distribution
Centres and Branch network with
access to some 300,000 products
on demand.

Geographical markets - Australia, UK,
Africa, Europe and Asia.

3,000+

130+

2,000+

Active Customers we serve across
multiple industry sectors.

Key brand, manufacturer and supplier
partners.

Suppliers on our register, sourced from
some 19 countries.

10

27

60+

Of our own branch and distribution
locations consisting of some 10,000sqm.

Member partners trade store
locations in Australia.

Distributor trade store locations in
the United Kingdom.

+
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Corporate Strategy
Vision
To create Australia’s leading multinational distribution group offering a broad-range of everyday
consumable products and supply chain solutions to business customers, focusing on Industrial & Trade,
and Consumer Retail customer markets.

Purpose
As a supplier and distributor, we offer a comprehensive assortment of products to support customers
with purchasing options and solutions that are essential in the operation of their business. We have
diversity across our portfolio of brands, customer types, geography and business partners connecting
our customers with our products across multiple sales channels and markets.

Aim over the next 5 years
Revenue

EBITDA margin

200m+ 8%+

$

Organic sales growth

Investment return

~10% YoY

Pay dividends

Focus areas & Initiatives
Focus on
existing
business units

Leverage
business
combinations

Continue to
develop customer
markets and
product offering

Expand our
operating
platform

Acquire
complementary
businesses

Strategy
We drive a clear strategy of sustainable revenue and profitable growth that continuously increases
our market share through organic, partnership and acquisitive pathways.
We will continue to build a diversified but integrated distribution portfolio strengthening our service offering.
We seek to establish more preferred and/or exclusive arrangements with supplier business partners,
and independent member partners helping them expand their business.
We provide a customer focussed approach that supports customers with their everyday needs through
operational infrastructure, efficiency and effectiveness showing a key point of differentiation with peers.

14

Stealth Global Holdings Annual Report 2019

Operating Model
Products
Safety / PPE

Industrial / MRO

Workplace

Consumables

Products

Consumables

Sourcing Procurement

Distributed Brands
Category
Management

Proprietary Brands
Product
Development

Bespoke Brands

Quality Control
Market Research/
Analysis

Inbound Logistics

Freight and Consolidation

Warehousing Operations

Distribution Centres

Inventory – 40,000 products

Access to 300,000 products

Trade Store Outlets

Distributor Partners

Branch Network

Branch Offices

Sales & Marketing

Sales and
Service Reps

Customer Service Trade Branch
Technical Support Network

Website, EDI
and Online

Catalogues
Vending

Delivery

Onsite Solutions

Vending

Distribution

Order
Fulfillment
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Trade Branch
Network; and
Click & Collect
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Sales Channels
Connecting our products across multiple sales channels

Sales and
Service Reps

Trade Retail
Own Branches

By Phone
Internal sales and
Customer Service

Member Network
Partners

Click and
Collect

Websites
eCommerce
channels

Distributors and
Resellers

Catalogues

3rd party
Webshops

Customers Benefit
Customers benefit from our purchasing power, comprehensive product range, distribution
network, and the ease of having multiple choices for supply.

Value Proposition
1
Comprehensive
assortment of products to
support customers with
purchasing options

2
Strong Sales and
service capability ‘local,
regional, international’
with deep technical
category knowledge
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3
Selection of multiple
sales channels offering
choice, competitive
prices and a simplified
customer experience

4
Australia wide and
International network that
includes distribution centres
and convenient widespread
branch store locations.
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Operating and
Financial Review

Operating and financial review
This Operating and Financial Review (OFR) sets out further information and commentary on the financial results of the
consolidated group, its operations, its future strategies & prospects and the risks it faces that may have a material impact on its
future financial results.
The OFR is part of the Directors report and is designed to complement and support the financial report.

Business proposition
Stealth is an Australian multinational distribution group providing workplace consumable products and supply chain
solutions to business customers. As a supplier and distributor, the Group offers a comprehensive assortment of products to
support customers with purchasing options and solutions that are essential in the operation of their business.
The diversified product portfolio of distributed brands, proprietary brands and bespoke brands are focussed on Safety,
Industrial, and Workplace product categories, sold to the Industrial, Trade and Retail customer markets.
The Group serves approximately 3,000 customers, large and small, across a variety of industry sectors including resources,
transportation, industrial, manufacturing, engineering, construction, contracting, trade retail, and general workplace environments.
Headquartered in Perth, the Group operates in Australia, UK, Africa, Asia, Europe under three competitive brands, Heatleys
Safety and Industrial, Industrial Supply Group, and BSA Brands (UK) a joint venture with Bisley Workwear.

A year of transformation
This year was the most transformative year in Stealth’s corporate history. It included a $12.5 million capital raising and Initial
Public Offering (IPO) listing on the ASX in October 2018, delivering on the IPO purpose by completing the acquisition of
Heatleys Safety & Industrial in October 2018 which more than doubled the Group sales. Thereafter it established BSA Brands
(UK) Limited (BSA) in the United Kingdom in March 2019, a joint venture with Bisley Workwear to exclusively sell the Bisley
Workwear product range into the UK and Africa markets, and then acquired the Industrial Supply Group Pty Ltd (ISG) in
Australia in May 2019 to provide the Group with better buying power and an Australia-wide distribution network.
These strategic milestones have resulted in a stronger, scalable and more competitive portfolio of businesses.
1. Through the Heatleys acquisition, Stealth established new capability in Western Australia and South Australia, adding annual
sales of $44 million, 104 staff, five trade branch locations, a 4,000sqm Distribution Centre and approximately 2,500 customers.
The Australian operations of Stealth and Heatleys were integrated during 2019, transferring 68 customers and 112 suppliers
into a single operational structure.
The combination of Stealth and Heatleys builds upon the Group’s position as a successful and emerging Australian
multinational distribution group, delivering a competitive strength that positions Stealth as the only Australian group of its
type operating across the five major geographical markets of Australia, UK, Europe, Africa, Asia.
2. The Group materially changed its UK and African strategy by establishing in a 50:50 joint venture with Bisley Workwear,
Australia’s leading workwear group with ~$100m in sales, and entering into an exclusive sales and distribution arrangement
with Troy UK, the UK’s largest independent member based industrial supplies group. Troy provides access to some 420
trade stores across the UK and an online sales platform both through Troy members and on the Amazon UK platform.
The strategic decision to partner with Bisley via a 50:50 venture on the product side, and with Troy Group on the sales
side, underpins a comprehensive ‘factory to end-user’ supply chain program across the UK delivering a major point
of difference and competitive advantage for Stealth. This is a significantly stronger business proposition than simply
representing the brand in the UK.
Partnering with Bisley, rather than simply expanding its existing sales & distribution channels for the brand (as per the
Prospectus), has brought together advantages of Bisley’s 35 years of product development, combined market knowledge,
brand leadership, product design and innovation, go to market strategies and factory direct pricing. This all complemented
with Stealth’s international experience and distribution network.
Its establishment in FY19 resulted in a delayed product sales launch (EBIT impact ~$0.9m) and greater corporate
establishment costs (EBIT Impact ~$0.6m). The investment with Bisley provides a more beneficial presence in the UK that
will deliver greater shareholder value and EPS growth in the medium term.
Operating control of BSA is exercised by Stealth, supported by a strong brand and equity partner in the Bisley group,
hence the financial results of BSA are consolidated in the financial report. This means 100% of the revenue and the current
operating loss are taken up in the group results, with the non-controlling interest on the consolidated income statement
representing the 50% interest held by Bisley.
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3. The acquisition of ISG in May 2019 provided Stealth with a new sales and distribution presence on the east coast of
Australia. Operating since 1992, ISG is a distribution group supplying industrial and safety products and services to
a coalition of 27 independent members throughout Australia that operate trade store outlets selling industrial and
workplace consumable products and supplies. Heatley’s has been a member of ISG for some 15 years.
The value of the acquisition provides the Group with an Australia-wide distribution footprint and new capability to expand
and bid for national supply contracts, whilst receiving additional benefit from the Group’s much-improved combined trading
volume, strengthening its buying power and capacity to compete against much larger multinationals and nationals. The
immediate impact on EPS was negative due to acquisition transaction costs, however a rapid return on investment is expected.
The acquisition price of ISG was $1m, $500k paid immediately with $500k deferred over two years. ISG is expected to
make a modest contribution of around $200k in FY20 and a stronger result in future years.
At June 30 2019, Stealth had 94,900,000 shares on issue. To reiterate in summary, after raising capital in October, funds
were used for the acquisitions of Heatleys and ISG, and to establish BSA Brands (UK). Heatleys was a substantial acquisition,
ISG provided more buying power and an Australia wide network, and BSA required significant investment in the UK into the
establishment of a start-up business all of which has been expensed. Neither the ISG acquisition nor the BSA establishment
were foreseen in the IPO and hence the statutory financial results do not align with the forecasts contained in the Prospectus.
It should also be noted that year on year comparisons of the statutory results are comparing significantly different group
structures. Where appropriate and useful we have provided proforma information that may assist in understanding the results
and the comparisons to the prior financial year.

Group Financial Performance
• Proforma3 Group Revenue of $74.6 million, ($66.1 million pcp) up 13%, in line with management guidance range1
of $73 to $76 million.
• Proforma3 underlying Group EBIT2 of $2.4 million before unusual cost items4 and IPO transaction costs
• Statutory Group Revenue of $63.1 million.
• Statutory underlying Group EBIT2 of $1.9 million before unusual cost items4 totalling $0.8 million.
• Proforma3 NPAT attributable to the members was $0.84 million.
• Statutory3 NPAT5 attributable to the members was $0.52 million, up 205%.
• Proforma Gross Profit Margin in Australian operations up to 29.3% from 29.0% in 2018.
• Net cash position of $0.4 million.
• $7 million of working capital finance facilities available to support organic growth and other strategic endeavours.
• Listed on ASX in October 2018 to complete the strategic acquisition of Heatleys Safety & Industrial
• BSA Brands – Established a joint venture with Bisley Workwear in the United Kingdom in March 2019.
• Industrial Supply Group (ISG) - completed the acquisition of ISG in Australia in May 2019.
Reference guide to the above
1. Guidance range noted in ASX Announcement 17 April 2019.
2. EBIT is a non-IFRS term, defined here as Earnings Before Interest and Tax attributable to the owners of the company after adding back the pre-tax loss of the
non-controlling interest.
3. Proforma and prior comparative period (pcp) figures assumes Stealth and Heatleys combined for the full 12 months; Statutory is 12 months Stealth, 9 months
Heatleys. Heatleys acquisition was completed on 27 September 2018.
4.Unusual cost items relates to joint venture establishment and marketing, acquisition evaluations and professional services including private to public
transition work.
5. By entering into the BSA Brands joint venture with Bisley Workwear, Stealth reduced its prospectus revenue forecast by $2.8m as stated in the 21 March 19 and
17 April 19 announcements, resulting in a gross profit margin reduction of $0.90m.

Revenue
Stealth incurred costs as a result of these investments in BSA and ISG in FY19, the full benefits of which will start to flow
in FY2020 and beyond. Consequently, the Company restated its FY19 prospectus forecasts in April 2019 to a Non-IFRS
pro-forma revenue in the range of $73 million to $76 million, and proforma Non-IFRS EBIT in the range of $1.8 million to
$2.0 million (before IPO transaction costs).
Proforma total group sales for the 12 months ending June 2019 rose 13% to $74.6 million, in line with Stealth’s April guidance.
The strong year-on-year growth in an otherwise challenging economic environment was primarily driven by the Company’s
successful push to win more large and medium sized customers in Australia.
Stealth performed well, maintaining good margins in Australia and the UK, and it is undertaking a review of its customer base
in Africa as it is experiencing declining margins with its major customer. This is expected to continue in FY20. The Group has
established a business development team that is focussed on securing medium and large accounts on stronger margins in
order to grow the business and to further reduce reliance on individual major customers.
Gross Profit Margin in the Australian business, where 70% of total sales are currently generated, improved from 29.0% to 29.3%
reflecting the successful integration of the Heatley’s acquisition during the period, and efficiency gains from 554 customers
transitioning to online ordering during the year. Stealth’s cost of doing business remained relatively steady during this financial year.
Heatleys Group performed well, delivering strong results in line with the prospectus forecasts, supporting the carrying value
of goodwill generated on the acquisition of the group.
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Underlying proforma Non-IFRS Earnings Before Interest and Tax (EBIT)
Underlying proforma Non-IFRS EBIT for the full 12 months of FY19 was $2.4 million (before investment related transaction
costs, joint venture establishment and marketing costs and other unusual items). This was in line with Stealth’s April guidance,
complemented by a solid performance of the core foundations, being the Australian operations.
The statutory Non-IFRS EBIT attributable to the owners of the Company was $919,000 (2018: loss ($496,000)).
The statutory result for the Owners of the Company after providing for income tax (and non-controlling interests) was a profit
of $520,805 (2018: loss ($497,007)).
Investment in joint venture
The BSA Brands (UK) joint venture with Bisley Workwear commenced operations in March 2019 and contributed $1.36 million
in sales. As a result of costs associated with the establishment, marketing and set up program, BSA contributed a small
after tax loss of $0.135 million to the Group after deducting the 50% non-controlling interest.
Reconciliation table – Full year trading: Actual set against April 2019 restated guidance set against Prospectus
Group Full Year Financial Results

Proforma4 full 12 months
FY19
Actual

Total Revenue

FY19

FY19

April 19
restated Prospectus

FY19
Actual

FY19

FY19

April 19
restated Prospectus

$’000

$’000

$’000

$,000

$,000

$,000

74,578

73,000

76,690

63,059

61,400

65,089

EBIT as per Prospectus
1

Less: GP reduction arising from JV sales delay

2

Underlying EBIT

Statutory4 full year reporting

(900)

(618)

(800)

(618)

1,618

1,800

1,137

1,319

1,400

1,582

919

1,101

218

218

218

218

EBIT1 (before IPO transaction costs)

1,618

1,800

1,137

1,319

JV Establishment and marketing costs

560

400

560

400

Acquisition evaluations

126

118

126

118

Professional services, including private to public transition

114

100

114

100

2,418

2,418

2,511

1,937

1,937

1,937

93

93

-

-

-

-

Less: unusual expense items

EBIT (before IPO transaction costs)
1

3

(800)

(900)
1,937

3

2,418

2,837

1,937

1

2,418

3,411

2,511

1,937

Reconciliation of EBIT1 to Prospectus Forecasts
EBIT1 (after IPO transaction costs)
IPO Transaction Costs

Underlying EBIT

1

First quarter Proforma result under budget (pre-acquisition)

1. EBIT is a non-IFRS term, defined here as Earnings Before Interest and Tax attributable to the owners of the company after adding back

the pre-tax loss of the non-controlling interest
2. By entering into the BSA Brands joint venture with Bisley Workwear, Stealth reduced its prospectus revenue forecast by $2.8m as stated in

the 21 March 19 and 17 April 19 ASX announcements, resulting in a gross profit margin reduction of $0.90m.
3. Unusual expense items related to joint venture establishment and marketing, acquisition evaluations and professional services including

private to public transition
4.Proforma figures assume Stealth and Heatleys combined for the full 12 months; Statutory is 12 months Stealth, 9 months Heatleys

Outlook – Group growth and strategy
The Group has an emerging diversified product portfolio of distributed brands, proprietary brands and bespoke brands sold
through Industrial, Trade and Consumer retail customer markets. The strategy is to accelerate growth and increase market
share via organic, partnership and acquisitive pathways building a diversified but integrated distribution portfolio.
The Company continues to advance a number of strategic initiatives and expects revenue in FY2020 to exceed FY2019 as
it drives towards its aim of $200 million by 2024. The Australian and UK business units are expected to deliver solid organic
sales growth in excess of 10%. Sales to customers operating in Africa may decline due to the Group resetting its product
and service offering in this region, placing a greater focus on inorganic strategies in the higher margin Australian and UK
marketplaces, and winning higher margin business in Africa.
To help achieve this aim, Stealth has established a business development team that is focussed on securing medium and large
accounts on stronger margins in order to grow the business and to further reduce reliance on individual major customers.
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Stealth has invested in making two key senior appointments within its executive team to improve core capabilities and to
effectively manage growth. David Kiggins has been appointed Group Chief Financial Officer and Phil Podgorski as Chief
Development Officer.
Stealth remains cautiously optimistic on the back of positive growth in the Australian and UK markets, as well as global
and regional conditions that are likely to remain favourable for its business. The focus now is on continuing expansion in
Australia, resetting its product offering in Africa for higher margin business and co-investing in the UK with Bisley Workwear
to continue store rollout programs and, importantly, build brand awareness in this new market through marketing, promotion
and innovation campaigns in FY2020.
The Company will continue to identify, target and evaluate suitable complimentary acquisitions that will continue to
strengthen the Group’s competitive position, creating a point of difference in the marketplace.
Outlook – ISG acquisition
The ISG operations will continue to serve the existing 27 members of ISG, introducing new features and benefits that increase
revenue streams of ISG and improve the overall competitiveness of ISG members through a broader customer and market offering.
Growth in sales and profit will also be driven by adding more members, linking with international buying groups to increase
the Group’s overall buying power and introduce new brand distribution rights, and expand the overall product range offering.
The national footprint provided by ISG members has allowed the Group to now bid for national supply contracts using the
infrastructure of members to support national distribution and service delivery which is it confident of securing in FY20.
Outlook – BSA Brands, and the sales and distribution of Bisley Workwear in the UK and Africa.
Stealth research suggests the identified addressable market size for Workwear in the UK in 2018 was $1 billion growing on
average at 5.5% per annum. The competitive landscape is fragmented. This represents an attractive opportunity to leverage
from Bisley’s Australian market leadership to win market share in the UK.
This UK based partnership is expected to deliver significant value in the medium term. Requiring further investment in FY20
of around $0.4m from Stealth, the FY20 key areas of focus will be on, rollout of product range in more store outlets, building
brand awareness, marketing and advertising programs and inventory and working capital, at the expense of short term results.
The expansion of the Bisley Workwear product range in the UK and in Africa will continue in FY20, with more planned store
rollouts continuing, winning new contract customer arrangements, and through Online sales webshop channels driven by
Troy members and via Amazon’s UK platform.
BSA is expecting strong uplift in sales as the number of retail outlets ranging Bisley Workwear increases, the brand is more
recognised in the UK, and benefits from targeted advertising and marketing campaigns is realised in the future. BSA is
expected to make a minimal contribution to the group results in the full-year of 2020, with stronger trading anticipated in the
second half period. The focus in the first half is on additional customer trade store rollouts and expanded product ranging.
BSA is expected to deliver a positive return in FY21 and beyond.

Material economic, environmental and social sustainability risks
The activities of the Consolidated Entity are subject to a number of risks and other factors which may impact its future
performance. The Company recognises that risk is inherent to any business activity and that managing risk effectively is
critical to the immediate and future success of the Group. As a result, the Board has adopted a Risk Management Policy
which sets out the Group’s system of risk oversight, management of material business risks and internal control.
Some of these risks can be mitigated by the use of safeguards and appropriate controls. However, many of the risks, especially
geo-political and economic risks, are outside the control of the Directors and the Management of the Consolidated Entity
and may not be mitigated either in whole or in part.
Business acquisition and integration
Achieving Stealth’s medium term growth targets required both organic growth and business acquisitions. In relation to
acquisitions, Stealth follows a process of identification, evaluation, negotiation, acquisition and integration. Each step in the
process is important in delivering successful growth through acquisition, and key judgements are required at each stage
in order to assess the likely success and future performance of the integrated, combined entity. The future performance
remains subject to uncertainty, and post-acquisition the integration process involves, among other things, coordinating
geographically separated organisations, integrating information technology systems, integrating personnel and combining
different corporate and workplace cultures.
Stealth commenced the integration of the Heatleys Group in October 2018, shortly after listing on the ASX, transitioning 68
Stealth customers into the Heatleys Group operations and commencing the supplier consolidation exercise. Both Heatleys
and ISG were acquired during the year and both entities have now been effectively integrated into the Group. This was
carefully planned and has been achieved without losing employees or customers – clear communication and consideration
for the existing cultures were the keys to that success. Stealth, Heatleys and ISG’s key management teams remain in place
following the acquisition and Heatleys’ senior management retain significant ownership in Stealth, ensuring strong capability
and commitment to delivering the significant operational benefits and enhanced growth opportunities available from
Stealth’s acquisition of these businesses.
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Reliance on key customers
The Group’s customer base has significantly expanded and industries sectors are more diversified following the IPO and the
acquisition of Heatleys which added some 2,500 customers to the Group’s portfolio. Prior to the IPO, Stealth held a supply
chain services contract with a major customer and a shareholder, Capital Drilling. Capital Drilling operates production and
exploration drilling activities throughout various countries in Africa. Capital Drilling remains Stealth’s largest single client by
revenue though contributes single margin gross profit percentage returns which is much less than all other medium and large
customer types. Capital Drilling will remain a significant shareholder of the Company having entered into a voluntary escrow
agreement for the majority of its shareholding (being 5,058,902 Shares) until September 2020.
The Group has established a business development team that is focussed on securing supply contracts with medium to large
customers that spend more than $1m per annum. These types of contracts historically Stealth has serviced exceptionally well,
which will reduce the exposure arising from reliance on a single large customer.
Doing business outside of Australia
Stealth currently operates across multiple jurisdictions and as a result faces the complexities and risks from the unique geo-political,
business and government requirements in each jurisdiction, which includes the ongoing uncertainty surrounding Brexit and
the challenges of conducting business in West Africa. Political and economic conditions are monitored by the Group, and
management experience will help to mitigate, but will not remove, the risks associated with conducting business internationally.
Foreign exchange rates
Historically the results of the Group were affected by significant movements in exchange rates, however this is no longer
considered to be significant to the Group following the acquisition of Heatleys which resulted in an significant increase in the
proportion of revenue being generated in Australia and recorded in Australian Dollars, which is the parent entity’s functional
currency. Following the launch of BSA Brands, the Group is expecting to generate a growing proportion of revenue in the UK
from sales in to the UK and African markets and recorded in Great British Pounds. Brexit may have an impact on exchange
rate movements, however this is not expected to be significant to the results of the Group. The impact of foreign exchange
rate movements on the historical performance of the Group are evaluated in Note H3 to the financial statements.
Reliance on key personnel
The Group operates under a strong human resources and employee relations framework, offering a competitive
remuneration structure to its personnel in order to attract and retain diverse, engaged and suitably qualified employees.
There remains no assurance that the Group will be able to retain key personnel and the departure of any such key personnel
may adversely impact the Group’s results until suitable replacements are employed.
Environmental and social sustainability
The Group’s operations are not subject to significant environmental regulations in the jurisdictions in which it operates, and it
does not have any material exposure to social sustainability risks at the present time.

Michael Arnold
Group Managing Director
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present their report together with the consolidated financial statements of Stealth Global Holdings Ltd (Stealth
or Company) and its controlled entities (Consolidated Entity or Group) for the financial year ended 30 June 2019 and the
auditor’s report thereon.
Directors
The names and particulars of the directors of the Company during or since the end of the financial year are:
Michael Alan Arnold (Group Managing Director)
Christopher Scott Wharton AM (Chairman)
Giovanni (John) Groppoli
Peter John Unsworth (Appointed 03 July 2018)
All were directors from the start of the period to the date of this report unless otherwise stated.
Michael Arnold (MAICD) – Group Managing Director (appointed on 24 October 2016)

Experience and expertise

Mr Arnold has extensive experience in the areas of international supply, product sales,
logistics and supply chain. His previous positions include Executive Director/Chief
Operating Officer of ADG Global Supply (previous ASX listed entity) until June 2013,
where he was responsible for developing business strategy, global infrastructure, business
development, operational capabilities and leading growth.
Previous to this he was the Chief Executive Officer of Lakewood Logistics for nine years
(a joint venture company held between Australia Post and Mr Arnold) and at the same time
held the role of Group General Manager of SWADS (2004-2006), one of Australia’s then
largest privately-owned logistics companies that was later sold to Australia Post.
The Board considers that Mr Arnold is not an independent Director.

Other current listed entity
directorships

None

Former listed entity directorships
in last 3 years

None

Special responsibilities at Stealth

Managing Director
Member of the Audit and Risk Committee
Member of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee

Christopher Wharton AM (FAIM & FAICD) – Independent Non-Executive Chairman (appointed on 13 June 2017)

Experience and expertise

Chris Wharton is the former Chief Executive Officer of Seven West Media WA, retiring from
full time work in April 2017.
He was responsible for all Seven West Media assets in Western Australia, including The
West Australian, The Sunday Times, West Regional Publications (21 mastheads), its online
properties thewest.com.au and Perthnow, WA Publishers, Redwave Media (nine regional
radio licences) and Channel Seven Perth.
In 2011, as CEO of the publicly-listed West Australian Newspapers (Holdings), Chris led the
multi-billion acquisition of the Seven Media Group, which today is Seven West Media. He
was Chief Executive Officer of West Australian Newspapers (Holdings) from December
2008. His position prior to this was Managing Director of Channel Seven Perth Pty Limited,
a post he held for nine years.
He began his career as a journalist and worked in all areas of newspaper management in
Sydney before being appointed Chief Executive Officer of Perth’s Community Newspaper
Group in 1995. In 2013, he became Chairman of Community Newspaper Group.
His community and business involvement include board memberships of the Telethon Trust
from 2000-2017, Gold Corporation 2004-2019 and the West Coast Eagles Football Club.
Chris was a member of the WA Olympic Team Appeal Committee from 2000-2017.
He is a member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors and a former Councillor and
Vice President of the WA Chamber of Commerce and Industry. He is also a former member
of the Committee for Perth. He was made a Member of the Order of Australia (AM) in the
2016 Queen’s Birthday honours for services to the print and broadcast industries and for
services to the community.

Other current listed entity
directorships

None

Former listed entity directorships
in last 3 years

None

Special responsibilities at Stealth

Chairman of the Board
Member of the Audit and Risk Committee
Member of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee
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Giovanni Groppoli (B. Juris; LLB; FAICD) – Non-Executive Director (appointed on 30 June 2018)

Experience and expertise

Mr Groppoli is a non-executive director of Automotive Holdings Group Ltd (ASX: AHG) and a
principal at Glen Forest Pty Ltd (a boutique legal strategy, governance and board advisory firm
based in Perth). He was a partner of national law firm Deacons (now Norton Rose Fulbright)
from 1987 to 2004 where he specialised in franchising, mergers and acquisitions, and corporate
governance. He was managing partner of the Perth office of Deacons from 1998 to 2002.
Mr Groppoli left private practice in 2004 and was until very recently was the managing
director of Milner’s Brand Marketing , a leading Australian brand marketing group
specialising in premium homeware products, and Aviva Mann Optical Group, an importer
and national distributor of optical products and accessories.
Mr Groppoli is a director of Senses Foundation and was the Chairman of public unlisted
entities Retravision (WA) Ltd and Electcom Ltd which managed and serviced the Retravision,
Westcoast Hi Fi and Fridge & Washer City retail brands in WA, SA and NT.
The Board considers that Mr Groppoli is not an independent Director.

Other current listed entity
directorships

None

Former listed entity directorships
in last 3 years

Automotive Holdings Group Ltd (from 4 July 2006)
Quintis Ltd (from 10 October 2014 to 18 June 2018)

Special responsibilities at Stealth

Chair of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee
Member of the Audit and Risk Committee

Peter Unsworth (BCom and FAICD) – Independent Non-Executive Director (appointed on 3 July 2018)

Experience and expertise

Mr Unsworth is a former chartered accountant and corporate finance specialist with
extensive experience as a public and private company director, having served on the board
of Gold Corporation (operator of Western Australian Government owned The Perth Mint)
as a director and chairman for almost 15 years. He has previously been a director of several
listed companies including venture capital company Westintech Innovation Corporation
Limited; gold, zinc, lead and silver mining company Perilya Mines Limited and office products
distribution company National 1 Limited.
Mr Unsworth’s career has included senior management positions with an international
accounting firm in both Perth and Sydney, a number of years with The Stock Exchange of
Perth Limited as chief executive, and director of corporate finance with a large stockbroking
company. He was appointed one of four Commissioners heading the ‘Commission to Review
Public Sector Finances’ in 1993 reviewing and reporting on the finances and activities of the
Western Australian Public Sector.

Other current listed entity
directorships

Impact Minerals Limited (from 28 April 2006)

Former listed entity directorships
in last 3 years

None

Special responsibilities at Stealth

Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee
Member of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee

Company Secretary
The following person held the position of Company Secretary during the financial year:
Karen Logan (BCom; Grad Dip AppCorpGov; FCIS; FGIA; F Fin; GAICD) (appointed on 10 July 2018)

Experience and expertise

Ms Logan is a Chartered Secretary with extensive compliance, capital raising, merger and
acquisition, IPO and backdoor listing experience in a diverse range of industries including
technology, media, resources, health care and life science. She has assisted a substantial
number of private start-ups and established businesses transition to being publicly-listed
companies for over 15 years.
Ms Logan has participated as a mentor of the University of Western Australia’s Career Mentor
Link program for over 9 years. She is the founder and principal of a consulting firm and company
secretary of several ASX-listed companies, providing corporate services to those clients.

Mr Brendan Rossiter (CPA, BBus (Accg)) held the position of Company Secretary until 26 July 2018.
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Directors’ Meetings and Committee Meetings
The Company has both a Remuneration and Nomination Committee and an Audit and Risk Committee. Due to the size of
the Board and the Group’s operations, the Board has determined that it is appropriate that all directors are members of each
committee. The Remuneration and Nomination Committee is chaired by Giovanni Groppoli; the Audit and Risk Committee is
chaired by Peter Unsworth.
The number of Directors’ meetings (including meetings of committees of Directors) and the number of meetings attended by
each of the Directors of the Company during the year ended 30 June 2019 are:

Board meetings
Director

Held

Remuneration and Nomination
Committee meetings

Attended

Held

Audit and Risk Committee
meetings

Attended

Held

Attended

Michael Arnold

13

12

2

2

4

4

Christopher Wharton (AM)

13

13

2

2

4

4

Giovanni Groppoli

13

12

2

2

4

3

Peter Unsworth

13

12

2

2

4

4

Directors’ Interests
Securities held by Directors as at the date of this Directors’ Report are shown in Section 7 of the Remuneration Report.
Principal Activity
The principal activity of the Group during the year ended 30 June 2019 was operating as a business-to-business international
distributor of a broad-range of safety, industrial, healthcare and workplace consumable products and provider of supply chain
solutions, with a particular focus on industrial, trade and consumer retail customer markets.
Review of Operations
The review of operations is contained in the Operating and Financial Review (OFR) section of this Annual Report.
Changes in State of Affairs
The Company listed on the Australian Securities Exchange in October 2018, raising $12,500,000 via an initial public
offering (IPO) and completing the acquisition of Heatleys, which represented significant changes in the state of affairs of the
Company. The movements in the capital structure were as follows:
1. On 20 July 2018, the Company completed a subdivision of 10,526 fully paid ordinary shares (Shares) into 21,300,000
Shares in accordance with shareholder approval obtained on that date;
2. on 14 September 2018 the Company completed a sub-division of 600,000 Preference Shares into 4,000,000
Preference Shares and subsequently converted 4,000,000 Preference Shares into 4,000,000 Shares in accordance with
shareholder approval obtained on that date;
3. the Company successfully completed an IPO and issued 62,500,000 Shares at an issue price of $0.20 per Share on
27 September 2018 to raise $12,500,000 (before costs);
4. on 27 September 2018, the Company completed the acquisition of 100% of the issued capital of Heatleys, through the
issue of 6,250,000 Shares and a cash payment of $7,500,000;
5. on successful completion of the IPO 850,000 Shares were issued to Mr Wharton for services in relation to the capital raising;
6. the Company granted 4,994,737 options to the joint lead managers to the IPO exercisable at $0.25 each and expiring on
27 September 2022 (Options) at a subscription price of $0.0001 per Option; and
7. the Company was subsequently admitted to the official list of the Australian Securities Exchange on 28 September 2018
and official quotation of its Shares on ASX commenced on 2 October 2018.
Other significant events included the establishment of BSA Brands (UK) Limited, a joint venture in the UK with Bisley
Workwear, and the acquisition of Industrial Supply Group Pty Ltd, an Australian buying group with 27 members. Both events
are discussed in greater detail in the OFR.
Events since the end of the financial year
Since 30 June 2019 the Group appointed two experienced executives, David Kiggins to the role of Group Chief Financial
Officer, and Philip Podgorski to the role of Group Chief Development Officer.
There has not been during the period between the year end and the date of this report any item, transaction or event of
a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the directors, to significantly affect the operations of the Group,
the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Group in future financial years.
Dividends
There were no dividends paid or recommended during the financial year ended 30 June 2019 (2018: nil).

Stealth Global Holdings Annual Report 2019 

27

Options
The following options were issued during the financial year:
Class

Unquoted options

Expiry date

Exercise price

Number of options

27 September 2022

$0.25

4,994,737

There were no options exercised during the financial year.
Future Developments
The Group will continue its strategy of increasing market share within existing markets, pursuing opportunities in emerging
markets and evaluating acquisition opportunities that add shareholder value. Additional details are contained in the OFR,
noting that specific information about future developments of the Group has not been included in this report as the Directors
believe that the inclusion of such specific information would be likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the Group.
Material Business Risks
The proposed future activities of the Consolidated Entity are subject to several risks and other factors which may impact
its future performance. Some of these risks can be mitigated using safeguards and appropriate controls. However, many of
the risks are outside the control of the Directors and the Management of the Consolidated Entity and may not be mitigated
either in whole or in part. The material risks are discussed in greater detail in the OFR.
Environmental Regulations
The Consolidated Entity’s operations are not subject to significant environmental regulations in the jurisdictions in which it
operates.
Corporate Governance
The Board of Directors is responsible for the operational and financial performance of the Company, including its corporate
governance. The Company believes that the adoption of good corporate governance adds value for stakeholders and
enhances investor confidence. The Company has reviewed its corporate governance practices against the Corporate
Governance Principles and Recommendations (3rd edition) published by the ASX Corporate Governance Council.
The Company’s Corporate Governance Statement is available on the Company’s website, in a section titled
Corporate Governance: https://www.stealthgi.com/investors/corporategovernance/
Indemnification and Insurance of Officers and Auditors
Indemnification
The Company has agreed to indemnify the current Directors and Officers of the Company against all liabilities to another
person (other than the Company or a related body corporate) that may arise from their position as Directors and Officers of
the Company, except where the liability arises out of misconduct.
The agreement stipulates that the Company will meet, to the maximum extent permitted by law, the full amount of any such
liabilities, including costs and expenses.
The Company has not agreed to indemnify its current auditors, BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd.
Insurance premium
The Company paid a premium, during the financial year in respect of a director and officer liability insurance policy, insuring
the Directors of the Group, the Company Secretary, and executive officers of the Group against a liability incurred as such a
Director, secretary or executive officer to the extent permitted by the Corporations Act 2001. The Directors have not included
details of the nature of the liabilities covered or the amount of the premium paid in respect of the Director’s and officers’
liability and legal expenses’ insurance contracts as such disclosure is prohibited under the terms of the contract.
Proceedings on behalf of the Company
No person has applied to the Court under section 237 of the Corporations Act for leave to bring proceedings on behalf of
the Company, or to intervene in any proceedings to which the Company is a party for the purposes of taking responsibility on
behalf of the Company for all or part of those proceedings.
Audit and non-audit services
The Company may decide to employ the auditor on assignments additional to their statutory audit duties where the auditor’s
expertise and experience with the Company and/or the Group are important.
Details of the amounts paid or payable to the auditors BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd and Bentleys Audit & Corporate (WA) Pty
Ltd for audit and BDO Corporate Finance (WA) Pty Ltd and Bentleys Audit & Corporate (WA) Pty Ltd for non-audit services
provided during the year are set out below.
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The Board has considered the position and, in accordance with advice received from the audit committee, is satisfied that
the provision of the non-audit services is compatible with the general standard of independence for auditors imposed by the
Corporations Act. The Board is satisfied that the provision of non-audit services as set out below, did not compromise the
auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act for the following reasons:
• all non-audit services have been reviewed by the audit committee to ensure they do not impact the impartiality and
objectivity of the auditor; and
• none of the services undermine the general principles relating to auditor independence as set out in APES 110 Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants.
During the year the following fees were paid or payable for audit and non-audit services provided by the auditor of the parent
entity, its related practices and non-related audit firms:
2019
$

2018
$

119,469

-

-

26,500

119,469

26,500

35,904

-

-

4,703

Total remuneration for non-audit services

35,904

4,703

Total remuneration for audit and non-audit services

155,373

31,203

Audit Services
BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd
Bentleys Audit & Corporate (WA) Pty Ltd
Total remuneration for audit services
Non-audit services:
Preparation of the Investigating Accountant’s Report by BDO Corporate Finance (WA) Pty
Ltd for inclusion in the Prospectus
Preparation of general-purpose report by Bentleys Audit & Corporate (WA) Pty Ltd

Auditor’s Independence Declaration
The Auditor’s Independence Declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is set out on page 82.

Remuneration Report – Audited
This Remuneration Report, which forms part of the Directors’ Report, outlines the key management personnel remuneration
arrangements of the Company and the Consolidated Entity in accordance with the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001
(Corporations Act) and its regulations. This information has been audited as required by section 308(3C) of the Corporations Act.
The Remuneration Report is structured as follows:
1. Key Management Personnel
2. Remuneration Overview for FY19
3. Remuneration Governance
4. Non-Executive Director Remuneration Arrangements
5. Executive Remuneration Arrangements
a. Remuneration Principles and Strategy
b. Approach to Setting Remuneration
c. Performance Linked Remuneration and Details of Incentive Plans
d. Executive Service Agreements
6. Remuneration of Key Management Personnel
7. Shareholdings of Key Management Personnel
8. Other Key Management Personnel Transactions
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1. Key Management Personnel
Key management personnel of the Consolidated Entity are defined as those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the major activities of the Company and the Consolidated Entity, directly or indirectly,
including any Director (whether Executive or otherwise) of the Company (as per AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures) and
certain key executives (together KMP).
For the purposes of this report, the term “executive” includes the Managing Director and other key executives of the
Consolidated Entity.
The following people were KMP of the Group at any time during the financial year and unless otherwise indicated were KMP
for the entire financial year:
Executive Director
Mr Michael Arnold, Group Managing Director
Non-Executive Directors
Mr Christopher Wharton AM, Independent Non-Executive Chairman
Mr Giovanni (John) Groppoli, Non-Executive Director
Mr Peter Unsworth (Appointed 03 July 2018), Independent Non-Executive
Key Executives
Mr Luke Cruskall, Group Chief Operating Officer
Mr Brendan Rossiter, Chief Financial Officer (until 28 July 2019), Group Financial Controller (from 29 July 2019)
Mr Salvatore (Sam) Barbaro, Managing Director Heatleys (from completion of Heatleys acquisition on 27 September 2018)

2. Remuneration Overview for FY19
The following provides an overview of Stealth’s remuneration framework for Executives and a summary of outcomes for the
financial year ended 30 June 2019.
Remuneration component

Overview

Fixed remuneration

Fixed remuneration was paid in line with contractual agreements

Short-term incentives (STI)

STI measures are determined using financial and non-financial targets established at the
commencement of each financial year. The financial targets are in a range from threshold to
stretch measured against defined Revenue and EBIT performance indices.
The 2019 outcomes for financial targets did not produce any payments for the threshold
opportunity (2018: nil).
The 2019 outcomes for non-financial targets provided discretionary payments to Executives
of $124,829, primarily in recognition of contributions made during the IPO and ASX listing
and the performance of Heatleys (FY18: $4,500).

Long-term incentives (LTI)

The Company did not issue any incentives under the LTI during FY19 (FY18: nil).

Total remuneration

In FY19, total remuneration was $1,625,055, an increase of 93% FY18 ($840,875) (see
Remuneration of Key Management Personnel table below), reflecting the full impact of the
increase in scale of the Group, the new appointments made by the Company in preparation
for the IPO, additional duties and responsibilities as a result of the IPO, subsequent listing on
the ASX, the acquisition of Heatleys and the appointment of additional KMPs.

3. Remuneration governance
Remuneration and Nomination Committee
The Remuneration and Nomination Committee reviews and approves the remuneration policy to enable the Company to
attract and retain Executives and Directors who will create value for shareholders having regard to compensation amounts
considered to be commensurate for a company of its size and level of activity.
The Committee is also responsible for reviewing any employee incentive and equity-based plans including the
appropriateness of performance hurdles and total payments proposed. If necessary, the Remuneration and Nomination
Committee obtains independent advice on the appropriateness of remuneration packages given trends in comparable
companies and in accordance with the strategic and business objectives of the Consolidated Entity.
Further information on the Remuneration and Nomination Committee’s role, responsibilities and membership are set out in
the Corporate Governance Statement.
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Use of Remuneration Consultants
To ensure the Remuneration and Nomination Committee is fully informed when making remuneration decisions, it seeks
external remuneration advice from time to time. When engaged, remuneration consultants are appointed by, and report
directly to, the Committee.
During the year, Stealth engaged remuneration consultants to provide assistance with documenting incentive design,
developing incentive structure and document management. No remuneration recommendations as defined in the
Corporations Act were provided by the remuneration consultants.
Voting and comments made at the Company’s 2018 Annual General Meeting
At the 2018 Annual General Meeting, more than 75% of votes cast were in favour of the adoption of the Company’s
remuneration report for the 2018 financial year. The Company did not receive any comments at the Annual General Meeting on
its remuneration report.

4. Non-Executive Director Remuneration Arrangements
Remuneration Policy
In accordance with best practice corporate governance, the structure of Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration is clearly
distinguished from that of Executives.
The total maximum remuneration of Non-Executive Directors is initially set by the Constitution and subsequent variation
is by ordinary resolution of Shareholders in general meeting in accordance with the Constitution, the Corporations Act and
the ASX Listing Rules, as applicable. The determination of Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration within that maximum will
be made by the Board having regard to the inputs and value to the Company of the respective contributions by each NonExecutive Director. The current aggregate Non-Executive Director fee pool has been set at $450,000 per annum.
In addition, a Director may be paid fees or other amounts (subject to any necessary shareholder approval, non-cash
performance incentives such as options) as the Directors determine where a Director performs special duties or otherwise
performs services outside the scope of the ordinary duties of a Director. Directors are also entitled to be paid reasonable
travelling, hotel and other expenses incurred by them respectively in or about the performance of their duties as Directors.
Non-Executive Directors do not receive any retirement benefits, other than statutory superannuation guarantee
contributions, nor do they receive any performance related compensation.
Level of Non-Executive Directors’ Fees
The level of Non-Executive Directors’ fees for the financial year ending 30 June 2019 were as follows1:
Name

Non-Executive Directors’ fees

Chair of Committee fees

Mr Christopher Wharton

$73,000 per annum

Not applicable

Mr Giovanni (John) Groppoli

$55,000 per annum

$10,000 per annum

Mr Peter Unsworth3

$55,000 per annum

$10,000 per annum

2

Notes:
1. Excludes statutory superannuation
2. Effective from 20 July 2018
3. Appointment Date: 3 July 2018.

Non-Executive Directors Appointment Letters
The Company has entered into letters of appointment with each of the Non-Executive Directors pursuant to which, each
of the above-mentioned parties are appointed as Non-Executive Directors of the Company, subject to the Constitution
relating to retirement by rotation and re-election of Directors. The letter summarises the board policies and terms, including
remuneration relevant to the office of director.

5. Executive Remuneration Arrangements
Remuneration for Executives is set out in their respective employment agreements.
Executive Directors may receive performance related remuneration but do not receive any retirement benefits, other than
statutory superannuation.
(a) Remuneration Principles and Strategy
The remuneration structures explained below are competitively set to attract and retain suitably qualified and experienced
candidates, reward the achievement of strategic and business objectives and achieve the broader outcome of creation of
value for shareholders. The remuneration structures take into account the following:
• the capability and experience of the key management personnel;
• the key management personnel’s ability to control the relevant segment’s performance;
• the Consolidated Entity’s performance including:
• the Consolidated Entity’s earnings and financial position; and
• subsequent to the ASX-listing, the growth in share price and shareholder return.
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The following table illustrates how the Company’s remuneration strategy aligns with strategic direction and links remuneration
outcomes to performance.
Remuneration
component

Vehicle

Purpose

Link to performance

Fixed
remuneration

Fixed remuneration consists of base
remuneration as well as statutory
superannuation and other benefits
including motor vehicle allowances and
income protection insurance, and the
Consolidated Entity pays fringe benefits
tax on these benefits, where applicable.

To provide competitive fixed
remuneration for key executives
determined by the scope of their
position and the knowledge,
skill and experience required to
perform the role.

Company and individual
performance are considered
during the annual remuneration
review.

STI

At-risk bonus provided in the form of cash.

To reward executives for their
contribution to achievement
of a range of financial and nonfinancial business outcomes, as
well as individual objectives.

Group Net Profit Before Tax is
the key financial metric, other
than for the Managing Director
whose STIs are based on Group
Net Profit After Tax.

LTI

Awards are made in the form of options
over ordinary shares or the issue of
performance rights in the Company.
Performance rights do not attract
dividends or voting rights.

Acts as a tool for retention of the
executive and encourages the
executive to take a long-term
view of Consolidated Entity
performance.

Vesting conditions and
performance measures will
be set by the Board each year.
LTIs were not offered in FY19
(FY18: nil).

(b) Approach to Setting Remuneration
The executive remuneration framework consists of a mix of fixed based remuneration, STIs and LTIs. The Company aims to
reward Executives with a level and mix of remuneration appropriate to their position, responsibilities and performance within
the business and aligned with market practice. The Company’s remuneration policy is intended to provide the opportunity to
earn rewards for outstanding performance against threshold and stretch targets set by the Board and management.
Remuneration levels are considered annually through a remuneration review that considers the performance of the
Company and the individual employee, geographical reach and complexity, relevant market movements and trends and the
broader economic environment.
(c) Performance Linked Remuneration and Details of Incentive Plans
Short-term incentive plan

The Group operates an annual short-term incentive plan (STIP) for certain key employees. Under the STIP, participants have
the opportunity to receive a cash incentive payment determined by the Board up to a cap of a percentage of their fixed
annual remuneration each year, conditional on the achievement of financial and non-financial performance criteria. The
financial criteria relate to the financial performance of the Consolidated Entity and the participant’s performance against
budget and the non-financial criteria will relate to achievement of team and individual key performance indicators (KPI). The
measures are chosen as they directly align the individual’s reward to the KPIs of the Consolidated Entity and to its overall
strategy and performance.
The performance measures against which each participant’s STI is assessed and their relative weightings will be tailored to a
participant’s role and will be set by the Board each year. Certain minimum conditions set by the Board must be met to receive
a payment, however the Board retains ultimate discretion on the payment of a bonus.
Specific financial performance targets are set for delivery of financial performance outcomes from threshold to stretch
performance. STI financial targets are generally specific profit measures aligned to the overall Consolidated Entity’s profit
result for the Managing Director and key management personnel and to segment performance for certain other employees.
This approach ensures the quantum of STIs earned and paid to any individual is directly driven by a financial performance
metric relevant to that person’s role. The total amount of STIs paid in a financial year is directly linked to the overall financial
performance for that year. Actual performance is determined based on audited financial results and for non-financial criteria,
internally reviewed management reports.
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The non-financial criteria are measured with reference to an assessment against a range of measures. The measures (and
their intended objectives) are taken from the following measures:
Non-financial measure

Overview and objective

Strategic

• KPIs aligned to delivery of strategic plan and initiatives

Business development

• Effective integration of acquisitions and alignment to target objectives
• Growth in customers, suppliers, product range, network partnerships

Stakeholder relationships

• Management of external relationships (manufacturers, partners, distributors, suppliers)
• KPIs aligned to customer relationships and successful business outcomes

People management

• KPIs aligned to compliance with and promotion of the Company’s values, policies
and behaviours

Expense management

• Expense management targets are set
• KPIs aligned to the achievement of budget and identifying and implementing
strategies to reduce costs

Compliance and reporting

• Specific measures surrounding compliance with policies and adherence with
regulatory requirements

At the end of the financial year and subsequent to the completion of the year-end audit, the Remuneration and Nomination
Committee and Board of Directors assess the performance of the Consolidated Entity, the relevant segment and individuals
against the performance criteria set. If it is determined that the performance criteria have been reached, the Remuneration
and Nomination Committee recommends the STI to be paid to the individuals subject to approval by the Board. The Board of
Directors at its sole discretion can also approve STI payments to key employees for other non-financial performance-based
outcomes as determined from time to time. Discretionary payments may be awarded either during the financial year or at the
end of the financial year.
Participation in the STIP in a particular financial year does not give rise to any entitlement to participate in the arrangement
for future years, any replacement arrangement or any other incentive plan which the Consolidated Entity may have in place.
Long-term incentive plan

The Company has adopted a long-term incentive plan (LTIP) in order to assist in the motivation and retention of key
employees. The LTIP is designed to align the interests of eligible employees more closely with the interests of shareholders by
providing an opportunity for eligible employees to receive an equity interest in the Company and providing participants with
the incentive to deliver growth in shareholder value.
Under the LTIP, eligible employees may be offered options and/or performance rights which may be subject to vesting
conditions set by the Board, up to a limit calculated as a percentage of their fixed annual remuneration each year, conditional
on achievement of stipulated performance criteria.
The performance measures against which each participant’s LTI is assessed and their relative weightings will be set by the
Board each year.
At the end of the financial year and subsequent to the completion of the year-end audit, the Remuneration and Nomination
Committee and Board of Directors assess the performance of the Consolidated Entity, the relevant segment and individual
against the KPIs set.
If it is determined a KPI has been reached, the Remuneration and Nomination Committee will recommend the options and/
or performance rights and or shares be issued to the individuals, subject to approval by the Board. Performance rights and
options may only be offered to Executive Directors subject to approval by shareholders in a general meeting and any other
approval required under the Corporations Act or Listing Rules.
Consolidated Entity Performance and its link to Short-Term Incentives and Long-Term Incentives

STI Financial performance measures for FY19
The FY19 financial performance measures were Consolidated Entity Net Profit Before Tax for Executives and Consolidated
Entity Net Profit After Tax for the Managing Director. No STI was considered applicable to the results of FY19.
STI Non-financial performance measures for FY19
No individual STI reward system for non-financial measures was set for the period FY19, however the 2019 outcomes for nonfinancial targets provided discretionary payments to Executives of $124,829, primarily in recognition of contributions made
during the IPO and ASX listing and the performance of Heatleys (FY18: $4,500).
LTI measures for FY19
The Company did not issue any incentives under the LTIP for FY19 (FY18: nil).
The Company plans to offer LTI awards to key employees in FY20 and will disclose the performance measures which drive LTI
vesting in the Remuneration Report in the FY20 Annual Report.
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(d) Executive Service Agreements
Remuneration and other terms of employment for key management personnel are formalised in employment agreements
which also contain customary clauses dealing with immediate termination for gross misconduct and confidentiality.
A summary of the key contractual provisions of the executive service agreements for each of the Executives in place during
the financial year ending 30 June 2019 is set out below:
Name and job title

Michael Arnold,
Group Managing
Director

Commencement
Date

Contract
duration

1 July 2018

Ongoing
contract

Notice period

Termination provision

12 months
(Executive or
Company)

Without cause: Must be employed at 30
September in the year of payment to be eligible to
receive STI. All vested and unexercised LTI can be
exercised in accordance with the rules of the LTIP.
With cause: STI is not awarded, and unvested LTI
will lapse.

Sam Barbaro,
Heatleys Managing
Director

25 July 2018

Ongoing
contract,
with a
minimum
of 2 years

6 months
(Executive or
Company)

Without cause: Must be employed at 30
September in the year of payment to be eligible to
receive STI. All vested and unexercised LTI can be
exercised in accordance with the rules of the LTIP.
With cause: STI is not awarded, and unvested LTI
will lapse.
At the ultimate discretion of the Company as to
whether any STI or LTI is payable on termination.

Luke Cruskall,
Chief Operating
Officer

25 July 2018

Ongoing
contract

Executive: 3 months
Company: 6 months
(additional 2 months
should termination
occur in November
or December)

Without cause: Must be employed at 30
September in the year of payment to be eligible to
receive STI. All vested and unexercised LTI can be
exercised in accordance with the rules of the LTIP.
With cause: STI is not awarded, and unvested LTI
will lapse.
At the ultimate discretion of the Company as to
whether any STI or LTI is payable on termination.

Brendan Rossiter,
Chief Financial Officer

25 July 2018

Ongoing
contract

Executive: 3 months
Company: 6 months
(additional 2 months
should termination
occur in November
or December)

Without cause: Must be employed at 30
September in the year of payment to be eligible to
receive STI. All vested and unexercised LTI can be
exercised in accordance with the rules of the LTIP.
With cause: STI is not awarded, and unvested LTI
will lapse.
At the ultimate discretion of the Company as to
whether any STI or LTI is payable on termination.
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6. Remuneration of Key Management Personnel

2019

Short-Term Employment Benefits
Base
salary,
fees &
allowances
$

Bonuses
earned
and
payable
$

Other
nonmonetary
benefits
$

Mr. C Wharton3

73,000

-

Mr. G Groppoli

65,000

Mr. P Unsworth

65,000

PostEmployment
benefits

% of Rem
that is
performance
based

Long-Term Employment Benefits

Superannuation
$

Long
service
leave
$

Sharebased
payments
(accrued)
$

Sharebased
payments
(vested)

Total
$

-

6,935

-

-

170,000

249,935

-

-

-

6,175

-

-

-

71,175

-

-

-

6,175

-

-

-

71,175

-

203,000

-

-

19,285

-

-

170,000

392,285

Mr. M Arnold2

389,000

60,000

12,743

25,000

6,675

-

-

493,418

Total Executive
Director

389,000

60,000

12,743

25,000

6,675

-

-

493,418

Mr. S Barbaro1

177,347

50,000

2,031

14,772

2,447

-

-

246,597

20%

Mr. L Cruskall2

235,500

7,350

-

21,361

261

-

-

264,472

3%

Mr. B Rossiter2

200,123

7,479

-

19,710

971

-

-

228,283

3%

Total Other KMP

612,970

64,829

2,031

55,843

3,679

-

-

739,352

1,204,970

124,829

14,774

100,128

10,354

-

Non-Executive
Directors

Total Non-Executive
Directors
Executive Director

12%

Other KMP

Total KMP

170,000 1,625,055

Note:
1. Only for period from 27 September 2018 (date of Acquisition of Heatleys) to 30 June 2019.
2. Managing Director and Board discretion used to declare and pay bonuses in relation to the IPO and the performance of Heatleys; M Arnold did not vote on
his bonus.
3. On successful completion of the IPO 850,000 Shares were issued to Mr Wharton for services in relation to the capital raising.

2018

Short-Term Employment Benefits
Base
salary,
fees &
allowances
$

Bonuses
earned
and
payable
$

Other
nonmonetary
benefits
$

70,000

-

Mr. J Boyton

125,000

Total Non-Executive
Directors

PostEmployment
benefits

% of Rem
that is
performance
based

Long-Term Employment Benefits

Superannuation
$

Long
service
leave
$

Sharebased
payments
(accrued)
$

Sharebased
payments
(vested)

Total
$

-

-

-

-

-

70,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

125,000

-

195,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

195,000

Mr. M Arnold

375,000

-

13,672

25,000

-

-

-

413,672

Total Executive
Director

375,000

-

13,672

25,000

-

-

-

413,672

49,749

-

-

4,336

-

-

-

54,085

3%

Non-Executive
Directors
Mr. C Wharton
12

Executive Director
-

Other KMP
Mr. L Cruskall3

157,806

4,500

320

15,402

-

-

-

178,028

Total Other KMP

Mr. B Rossiter

207,555

4,500

320

19,738

-

-

-

232,113

Total KMP

777,555

4,500

13,992

44,738

-

-

-

840,785

Note:
1. A total of $125,000 of Non-Executive Directors’ fees has been recognised in the 2018 financial year in respect of fees accrued for the 4 years that Mr Boyton
served as a director of the Company and SAAC International Pte Limited (a Singapore company), the entity that previously owned the Company.
2. Resignation Date: 30 June 2018.
3. Appointment Date: 9 April 2018.
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7. Share holdings of Key Management Personnel
The movement during the year in the number of ordinary shares in the Company held directly or indirectly or beneficially by
each member of the Key Management Personnel, including their related parties, is as follows:
KMP

Held at 1 Jul 2018 /
Date of appointment

Other changes6,7

Purchases/ (Sales)

Held at 30 Jun 2019 and at the
date of this Directors’ Report

-

850,000

500,000

1,350,000

Directors
Mr. C Wharton1,7
Mr. M Arnold

5,000

10,112,803

487,500

10,605,303

3

526

1,063,867

300,000

1,364,393

Mr. P Unsworth

-

-

250,000

250,000

Mr. L Cruskall

-

-

160,000

160,000

Mr. S Barbaro

1,405,250

-

-

1,405,250

Mr. B Rossiter

-

-

25,000

25,000

2

Mr. G Groppoli

4

Senior Executives

5

Note:
1. 1,160,000 Shares held by Nicarldon Pty Ltd as trustee for the Wharton Family Trust. Mr Wharton is a director and shareholder of the trustee and a beneficiary
of the trust. 190,000 Shares held by Christopher Wharton & Donna Wharton as trustee for Wharton Super Fund, of which trust Mr Wharton is joint trustee and
a beneficiary of the superannuation fund.
2. 10,117,803 Shares held by Sorrento200 Holdings Pty Ltd as trustee for the Sorrento200 Holdings Trust. Mr Arnold is a director and shareholder of the trustee
and a beneficiary of the trust. 487,500 Shares held by Michael Alan Arnold & Linda Jan Arnold as trustee for Talukei Super Fund, of which Mr Arnold is joint
trustee and a beneficiary of the superannuation fund.
3. 1,064,393 Shares held by Giovanni (John) Groppoli as trustee for The Milo Trust. Mr Groppoli is a beneficiary of the trust. 300,000 Shares held Glen Forest Pty
Ltd as trustee for the Jubaea Super Fund, of which Mr Groppoli is a director and a shareholder of the trustee and a beneficiary of the superannuation fund.
4.250,000 Shares held PJ Enterprises Pty Ltd as trustee for Super Fund – SLU Trust, of which Mr Unsworth is a director and a shareholder of the trustee and a
beneficiary of the superannuation fund.
5. 1,405,250 Shares held by Salvatore Barbaro and Lynette Margaret Barbaro as trustee for the Sam Barbaro Family Trust, of which Mr Barbaro is joint trustee
and a beneficiary of the trust.
6.On 20 July 2018, the Company completed a subdivision of 10,526 Shares into 21,300,000 Shares in accordance with shareholder approval obtained on that
date resulting in changes to the holdings of Mr M Arnold and Mr G Groppoli.
7. On successful completion of the IPO 850,000 Shares were issued to Mr Wharton for services in relation to the capital raising.

No options were held by, issued to or exercised by key management personnel during the year.

8. Other Key Management Personnel Transactions
A number of key management personnel, or their related parties, hold positions in other entities that result in them having
control or significant influence over the financial or operating policies of those entities. The related party transactions with
Key Management Personnel are set out below.
2019
$

2018
$

The Company engaged Glen Forest Pty Ltd, in which John Groppoli is a Director, to provide
corporate and commercial consulting services, John was appointed a Director on 30 June 2018

21,101

40,400

Trade and other payables owing to Glen Forest Pty Ltd, in which John Groppoli is a Director,
from the Company as at end of the year

10,895

5,940

The terms and conditions of these transactions were no more favourable than those available, or which might reasonably be
expected to be available, on similar transactions to unrelated entities on an arm’s length basis.
There were no other key management personnel transactions during the 2019 or 2018 financial years.
Share-Based Compensation
During the year 850,000 Shares were issued to Mr Wharton at no cost on successful completion of the IPO for services in
relation to the capital raising. These amounts are included in the remuneration tables and Note E7 Share Based Payments.
No options were held by, issued to or exercised by key management personnel during the year.
Loans to Key Management Personnel
There were no loans to key management personnel during the year.
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This concludes the Remuneration Report, which has been audited.
This directors’ report is signed in accordance with a resolution of directors made pursuant to section 298(2) of the
Corporations Act 2001.
On behalf of the Directors

Michael Arnold
Group Managing Director
Perth, 27 September 2019
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Annual Financial Report
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
and Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019
Note

2019
$

2018
$

Continuing Operations
Sales revenue

B1

62,807,565

23,073,543

Service revenue

B1

251,862

380,871

Cost of sales

(47,724,656)

(19,123,736)

Gross Profit

15,334,771

4,330,678

11,298

87,524

Personnel expenses

(9,459,132)

(2,817,574)

Administration expenses

(3,532,077)

(1,282,983)

Occupancy expenses

(1,233,036)

(241,569)

Other income

B2

Transaction costs

B2

(218,683)

(477,826)

Depreciation and amortisation expense

C6

(165,946)

(91,805)

(149,276)

(20,035)

587,919

(513,590)

(201,638)

16,583

386,281

(497,007)

520,805

(497,007)

(134,524)

-

386,281

(497,007)

386,281

(497,007)

73,933

36,232

460,214

(460,775)

594,738

(460,775)

(134,524)

-

460,214

(460,775)

Cents

Cents

Finance costs
Profit/(Loss) from continuing operations before income tax
Income tax (expense) / credit

D1

PROFIT / (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

Profit / (Loss) for the year attributable to:
Owners of the company
Non-controlling interests

E4

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Profit / (Loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Foreign currency translation gains of international subsidiaries

E1

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year attributable to:
Owners of the company
Non-controlling interest

E4

Earnings per share for profit attributable
to the ordinary equity holders of the company:

Basic earnings per share

E5

0.68

(2.33)

Diluted earnings per share

E5

0.68

(2.33)

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2019
Note

2019
$

2018
$

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

C1

2,005,765

265,585

Trade and other receivables

C3

15,875,496

3,793,726

Inventories

C4

6,265,689

332,325

Other assets

C5

576,285

122,185

24,723,235

4,513,821

Total Current Assets

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment

C6

601,211

156,980

Intangible assets

C7

6,888,531

463,652

Deferred tax assets

D2

1,127,796

281,782

-

6,003

1,100

250,000

8,618,638

1,158,417

33,341,873

5,672,238

Investments in joint ventures
Other assets

C5

Total Non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables

C8

16,314,152

5,575,843

Current tax liabilities

D1

9,117

12,246

Financial liabilities

C11

1,849,230

550,096

Provisions

C9

987,954

61,659

19,160,453

6,199,844

Total Current Liabilities

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities

C10

997,354

30,556

Deferred tax liabilities

D2

20,621

17,125

Provisions

C9

221,754

-

1,239,729

47,681

20,400,182

6,247,525

12,941,691

(575,287)

Total Non-Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Issued capital

E1

13,048,699

118,340

Accumulated funds

E3

(224,306)

(745,111)

Reserves

E1

250,916

51,484

13,075,309

(575,287)

(133,618)

-

12,941,691

(575,287)

Capital and reserves attributable to owners of Stealth Global Holdings Ltd
Non-controlling interests
TOTAL EQUITY

E4

The consolidated statement of financial position is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
As at 30 June 2019
Attributable to owners of Stealth Global Holdings Ltd
Issued
Capital
$

Balance as at 1 July 2017

Accumulated
Funds
$

Reserves
$

Noncontrolling
Interests
$

Total
$

Total Equity
$

349,424

15,252

(248,104)

116,572

-

116,572

Profit (Loss) for the year

-

-

(497,007)

(497,007)

-

(497,007)

Other comprehensive income for the year

-

36,232

-

36,232

-

36,232

Total comprehensive income for the year

-

36,232

(497,007)

(460,775)

-

(460,775)

(231,084)

-

-

(231,084)

-

(231,084)

Balance as at 30 June 2018

118,340

51,484

(745,111)

(575,287)

-

(575,287)

Balance as at 1 July 2018

118,340

51,484

(745,111)

(575,287)

-

(575,287)

Profit for the year

-

-

520,805

520,805

(134,524)

386,281

Other comprehensive income for the year

-

73,933

-

73,933

-

73,933

Total comprehensive income for the year

-

73,933

520,805

594,738

(134,524)

460,214

13,920,000

-

-

13,920,000

-

13,920,000

-

125,499

-

125,499

-

125,499

(989,641)

-

-

(989,641)

-

(989,641)

-

-

-

-

906

906

13,048,699

250,916

(224,306)

13,075,309

(133,618)

12,941,691

Transactions with Equity Holders in their
capacity as Equity Holders
Share issue costs

Transactions with Equity Holders in their
capacity as Equity Holders
Issue of ordinary shares
Issue of options
Share issue costs
Non-controlling interests
Balance as at 30 June 2019

The consolidated statement of changes in equity is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019
2019
$

2018
$

59,602,031

24,540,722

(59,108,579)

(23,341,154)

(97,847)

(11,751)

(647,276)

(211,367)

(251,671)

976,450

(299,352)

(72,328)

Proceeds from the sale of plant & equipment

2,500

1,058

Proceeds on exit of joint venture

6,003

41,314

Interest received

11,298

1,659

-

(250,000)

(7,817,829)

(25,000)

(8,097,380)

(303,297)

12,500,499

-

Payments for capital raising costs

(1,106,411)

(100,661)

Proceeds from financial liabilities

1,572,807

290,128

Repayment of financial liabilities

(2,877,664)

(681,969)

Net cash inflow / (outflow) from financing activities

10,089,231

(492,502)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

1,740,180

180,651

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

265,585

84,934

2,005,765

265,585

Note

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts from customers
Payment to suppliers
Interest paid
Income tax paid
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from operating activities

C2

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for plant & equipment

Deposit paid
Net cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiary

F3

Net cash inflow / (outflow) from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of shares and options

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

C1

The consolidated statement of cash flows is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Section A: About this Report
A1 Reporting Entity
Stealth Group Holdings Ltd (Stealth or Company) is a company domiciled in Australia. The consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the Group and
individually as Group Entities).
The Company’s registered office and principal place of business is Unit 10, 43 Cedric Street, Sterling WA 6021.

A2 Basis of Preparation
(a) Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in accordance
with Australian Accounting Standards (AASBs) adopted by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and the
Corporations Act 2001. The consolidated financial statements of the Consolidated Entity comply with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and interpretations adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). It presents
the results of Stealth and its controlled entities (Consolidated Entity).
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the continuity of
normal business activity and the realisation of assets and the settlement of liabilities in the ordinary course of business.
The consolidated financial statements are prepared on an accruals basis and are based on historical costs except where
otherwise stated. The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 27 September 2019.
(b) Functional and presentation currency
These consolidated financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
(c) Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with AASBs requires management to use judgement, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and hence the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The following table lists the areas where a higher degree of judgement or complexity was involved, and areas
that have the potential to be materially adjusted in their presentation in the financial statements should those estimates or
assumptions be incorrect.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and any required revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected:
(i)

Taxation – estimation of current tax payable and current tax expense, and recognition of deferred tax asset

Section D

(ii) Business combinations – fair value of purchase consideration

Section F3

(iii) Goodwill – estimation of impairment

Section C7

(iv) Control of Subsidiaries – assessment of control for consolidation

Section F2

(v) Inventories – valuation of inventory

Section C4

(vi) Revenue Recognition – assessment of timing and transaction pricing, principal vs agent assessment

Section G1

A3 Significant Accounting Policies
The accounting policies set out in Section I to the consolidated financial statements have been applied consistently to all
periods presented in these consolidated financial statements.
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Section B: Business Performance
B1 Operating Segments
The Consolidated Entity results are reported as three business areas based on geographic regions, which are reviewed
regularly by the Board of Directors. The principal results reviewed for each area are revenue and adjusted operating profit.
The Board of Directors’ view is that there are three reportable segments, being the business areas of Australia, UK and Rest
of the World. Unless stated otherwise, all amounts reported to the Board of Directors with respect to operating segments, are
determined in accordance with accounting policies that are consistent to those adopted in the annual financial statements of
the Consolidated Entity.
All intersegment transactions are eliminated on consolidation of the Consolidated Entity’s financial statements. Where an
asset is used across multiple segments, the asset is allocated to that segment that receives majority economic value from
that asset. Usually segment assets are clearly identifiable based on their nature and physical location. Liabilities are allocated
to segments where there is a direct nexus between the incurrence of the liability and the operations of the segment. The
following items of revenue and expenses are not allocated to operating segments as they are not considered part of the core
operations of any segment: Finance expense and Income tax expense/(credit).

Year ended 30 June 2019

Revenue
Adjusted Operating profit/(loss)
Transaction costs
Operating profit/(loss)

Australia
$

UK
$

Rest of
the World
$

Corporate
$

Total
$

58,220,514

4,833,291

5,622

-

63,059,427

1,802,003

(158,534)

(2,174)

(685,417)

955,878

-

-

-

(218,683)

(218,683)

1,802,003

(158,534)

(2,174)

(904,100)

737,195

Finance expense

(149,276)

Profit/(loss) before income tax

587,919

Income Tax Expense

(201,638)

Profit / (loss) for the year

386,281

Less: Non-controlling interests

(134,524)

Profit / (Loss) for the year attributable
to owners of the company

520,805
29,983,465

1,352,736

299,686

1,705,986

33,341,873

Reportable segment liabilities

19,227,989

967,839

20,492

183,862

20,400,182

Capital employed

10,755,476

384,897

279,194

1,522,124

12,941,691

299,056

-

296

-

299,352

152,462

3,706

9,778

-

165,946

Reportable segment assets

Capital Expenditure
Depreciation and amortisation

Revenue includes revenue from services amounting to $251,862 earned during the reporting period (2018: $380,871) which
is recognised over time. The remaining revenue was derived from the sale of goods which is recognised at a point in time.
Revenues from the major customer for FY19 were $17,943,624 (2018: $19,414,220).
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Australia
$

UK
$

Rest of
the World
$

Corporate
$

Total
$

Revenue

21,571,630

1,870,375

12,409

-

23,454,414

Adjusted Operating profit/(loss)

1,100,403

160,449

3,274

(653,791)

610,335

(288,418)

(312,441)

(25,205)

-

(626,064)

-

-

-

(477,826)

(477,826)

811,985

(151,992)

(21,931)

(1,131,617)

(493,555)

Year ended 30 June 2018

Growth Related Investment & Restructuring
Expenditure
Transaction costs
Operating profit/(loss)
Finance expense

(20,035)

Profit/(loss) before income tax

(513,590)

Income Tax Credit

16,583

Profit / (Loss) for the year attributable
to owners of the company

(497,007)

Reportable segment assets

4,374,064

508,914

300,924

488,336

5,672,238

Reportable segment liabilities

5,037,224

176,576

285,004

748,721

6,247,525

Capital employed

(663,160)

332,338

15,920

(260,385)

(575,287)

Capital Expenditure

59,727

1,467

11,134

-

72,328

Depreciation and amortisation

75,616

3,039

13,150

-

91,805

B2 Revenues and Expenses
2019
$

2018
$

11,298

1,659

Cost Recovery Recharges

-

1,402

Other income

-

84,463

11,298

87,524

51,200

12,000

8,580,574

2,474,891

165,946

91,805

10,489

71,841

208,194

405,985

218,683

477,826

(a) Other income
Interest income

(b) Other expenses
Doubtful debts

(c) Employee benefits expense
Wages and salaries costs

(d) Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

(e) Transaction Costs
Pre-acquisition costs relating to business combinations
Capital raising costs
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Section C: Operating Assets and Liabilities
C1 Cash and Cash Equivalents
2019
$

2018
$

2,005,765

265,585

2019
$

2018
$

386,281

(497,007)

165,946

91,805

16,118

(1,058)

(2,500)

-

-

(1,754)

Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss

54,598

41,297

Interest income recognised in profit/loss

(11,298)

(1,659)

-

(130,423)

(4,263,308)

920,767

(1,590,941)

(23,208)

(289,033)

(139,331)

411,770

-

-

32,284

5,184,119

814,127

139,167

11,782

(456,088)

(124,646)

3,498

(16,526)

(251,671)

976,450

2,005,765

265,585

(1,599,230)

(9,893)

Borrowings - repayable after one year

(42,025)

(30,556)

Net cash/(debt)

364,510

225,136

Cash

2,005,765

265,585

Gross debt

(1,641,255)

(40,449)

364,510

225,136

Cash and bank balances

C2 Reconciliation of Cash Flows Used in Operating Activities

(a) Profit / (Loss) after income tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
(Profit)/Loss on Sale of Non-Current Assets
Proceeds from sale of Non-Current Assets
Share of associate profit

Capital raising costs
Change in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects from purchase of controlled entities:
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in deferred tax assets
(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables
Increase/(decrease) in provisions
Increase/(decrease) in current tax liabilities
Increase/(decrease) in deferred tax liabilities
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from operating activities

(b) Net cash/(debt) reconciliation

Cash and cash equivalents (all unrestricted cash balances)
Borrowings - repayable within one year

Net cash/(debt)
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Cash

Finance
leases due
within 1 year

Finance
leases due
after 1 year

Borrowings
due within
1 year

Borrowings
due after
1 year

Total

Net cash/(debt) as at 1 July 2017

84,934

-

-

-

-

84,934

Cash flows

180,651

-

4,705

-

-

185,356

-

(9,893)

(35,261)

-

-

(45,154)

265,585

(9,893)

(30,556)

-

-

225,136

Cash

Finance
leases due
within 1 year

Finance
leases due
after 1 year

Borrowings
due within
1 year

Borrowings
due after
1 year

Total

265,585

(9,893)

(30,556)

-

-

225,136

-

(30,312)

(25,810)

(1,858,169)

-

(1,914,291)

1,740,180

26,524

39,416

285,361

-

2,091,481

-

(12,742)

(25,074)

-

-

(37,816)

2,005,765

(26,423)

(42,024)

(1,572,808)

-

364,510

Acquisitions - finance leases
Net cash/(debt) as at 30 June 2018

Net cash/(debt) as at 1 July 2018
Debt acquired on acquisition of
subsidiary
Cash flows
Acquisitions - finance leases
Net cash/(debt) as at 30 June 2019

2019
$

2018
$

37,816

43,892

5,834,244

664,629

2019
$

2018
$

15,027,026

3,549,902

(10,883)

(10,553)

15,016,143

3,539,349

GST receivables

425,655

236,125

Income Tax receivables

136,590

-

Other receivables

297,108

18,252

15,875,496

3,793,726

(c) Non-cash financing
Acquisition of motor vehicle by means of finance lease
(d) Financing arrangements
The Group had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the
reporting period:
Floating Rate
- Expiring within one year (Invoice Finance, bank overdraft, interchangeable facility and
credit card facility)

C3 Trade and Other Receivables

Trade receivables
Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts

Impairment
The Group assessed on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost and FVOCI.
The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.
The Group makes use of a simplified approach in accounting for trade and other receivables as well as contract assets and
records the loss allowance at the amount equal to the expected lifetime credit losses. In using this practical expedient, the
Group uses its historical experience, external indicators and forward-looking information to calculate the expected credit
losses using a provision matrix.
The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates the Group is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Group.
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Movements in the provision for impairment of trade and other receivables were as follows:
2019
$

2018
$

At beginning of the period

10,553

37,418

Provision for impairment during the period

51,200

12,000

(50,870)

(38,865)

10,883

10,553

2019
$

2018
$

0 – 30 Days

8,310,382

2,199,392

31 – 60 Days

4,966,575

1,075,760

61 – 90 Days

1,212,340

142,572

526,846

121,625

10,883

10,553

15,027,026

3,549,902

2019
$

2018
$

6,509,809

337,684

(244,120)

(5,359)

6,265,689

332,325

2019
$

2018
$

Prepayments

446,218

61,343

Deposits Paid

130,067

60,842

576,285

122,185

-

250,000

1,100

-

1,100

250,000

Debts written off during the period
At end of the period

At 30 June 2018, the ageing analysis of trade and other receivables is as follows:

+90 Days
+90 Days considered impaired

C4 Inventories

Finished goods – at cost
Provision for obsolescence

C5 Other Assets

Current

Non-Current
Deposits Paid
Other
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C6 Property, Plant and Equipment
Branding

Computer
Equipment

Motor
Vehicles

Plant &
Equipment

Building

Total

1,464

101,114

12,267

58,768

2,844

176,457

Additions

-

9,344

44,487

19,082

-

72,913

Disposals

-

(53)

-

(2,967)

-

(3,020)

(1,464)

(54,878)

(9,122)

(25,661)

(680)

(91,805)

Exchange differences

-

(97)

-

2,242

290

2,435

At 30 June 2018, net of accumulated depreciation

-

55,430

47,632

51,464

2,454

156,980

6,470

292,671

114,100

122,660

6,015

541,916

(6,470)

(237,241)

(66,468)

(71,196)

(3,561)

(384,936)

-

55,430

47,632

51,464

2,454

156,980

At 1 July 2018, net of accumulated depreciation

-

55,430

47,632

51,464

2,454

156,980

Additions

-

69,563

75,128

161,137

7,416

313,244

Acquisition through business combinations

-

40,326

120,634

117,175

48,808

326,943

Disposals

-

(2,512)

(7,467)

(20,031)

-

(30,010)

Depreciation for the period

-

(60,700)

(39,055)

(58,637)

(7,554)

(165,946)

At 30 June 2019, net of accumulated depreciation

-

102,107

196,872

251,108

51,124

601,211

Cost

-

409,409

594,555

1,377,876

192,805

2,574,645

Accumulated depreciation

-

(307,302)

(397,683)

(1,126,768)

(141,681)

(1,973,434)

Net carrying amount

-

102,107

196,872

251,108

51,124

601,211

Year ended 30 June 2018
At 1 July 2017, net of accumulated depreciation

Depreciation for the period

At 30 June 2018
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Net carrying amount
Year ended 30 June 2019

At 30 June 2019
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C7 Intangible Assets - Goodwill

Opening balance – Goodwill
Arising on acquisition through business combination – Heatleys
Arising on acquisition through business combination - ISG
Exchange Differences
Closing balance – Goodwill

2019
$

2018
$

463,652

463,762

5,479,879

-

925,667

-

19,333

(110)

6,888,531

463,652

Refer Note F3 for detailed breakdown of Business Combinations.
Impairment
For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount of each Cash Generating Unit (CGU) was based on its value
in use, determined by discounting the future cash flows to be generated from the continuing use of each CGU.
The calculated recoverable amount for each CGU was determined to be greater than its carrying amount and therefore no
impairment adjustment is required to be recognised.
The value in use assessment was calculated based on the present value of the cash flow projections over a five-year period
and include a terminal value at the end of year five based on a growth rate of 3%. The cash flow projections over the fiveyear period are based on the Group’s performance and growth over the forecast periods based on the Group’s plans and
management’s assessment of the impacts of underlying economic conditions, past performance and other factors on each
CGU’s financial performance.
Key assumptions applied in relation to significant Goodwill balances, being Heatleys and ISG, in the estimation of value in use
were the same across each CGU, being a pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections of 12% (2018: 12%) based
on a weighted average cost of capital; revenue growth rate of 2.4% and a terminal value growth rate of 2% (2018: 3%).
A sensitivity analysis showed that a 10% change in any of the above assumptions would not trigger an impairment indicator.
Goodwill

Revenue Growth

Terminal Growth
Rate

Discount Rate

Heatleys Group – acquired in September 2018

5,479,879

2.%

2%

12%

Industrial Supply Group – acquired in May 2019

925,667

2.4%

2%

12%

Other goodwill balances

482,985

2019
$

2018
$

Trade creditors

15,201,950

4,950,485

Other creditors

483,475

202,840

Accrued expense

548,304

397,936

80,423

24,582

16,314,152

5,575,843

2019
$

2018
$

987,954

61,659

122,450

-

99,304

-

221,754

-

Total Goodwill

6,888,531

C8 Trade and Other Payables

Current – unsecured

GST payable

C9 Provisions

Current
Provision for employee entitlements
Non-current
Occupancy provision
Provision for employee entitlements
Non-current total
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C10 Financial Liabilities
2019
$

2018
$

1,572,807

-

26,423

9,893

1,599,230

9,893

250,000

-

Share buy-back deferred settlement

-

271,248

Prepayment from Capital Drilling

-

268,955

Total Current Other Financial Liabilities

250,000

540,203

Total Current Financial Liabilities

1,849,230

550,096

42,025

30,556

705,329

-

250,000

-

997,354

30,556

Current:
Borrowings
Westpac facility
Leases
Total Current Borrowings
Other Financial Liabilities
Deferred consideration – ISG

Non-current:
Borrowings
Leases
Other Financial Liabilities
Funds contribution – non-controlling interest Joint Venture partner
Deferred consideration – ISG
Total Non-Current Financial Liabilities

The Westpac Facility is secured by the trade debtors of Heatley Sales Pty Ltd and a floating charge over the assets of the
Heatleys Group. The interest rate is variable and was 4.99% at 30 June 2019.
The Finance leases are secured over the Motor Vehicles and the interest rates are fixed at rates between 4.66% and 4.99%
(2018: 4.99%). The term of the leases is between 1 and 4 years with equal monthly repayments.
The Prepayment from Capital Drilling was unsecured and interest free. The deferred settlement on the share buy was
unsecured and interest free. Both were fully repaid during the year.
The two payments of $250,000 related to the ISG deferred settlement following the business combination, refer to Note F3.
The funds contribution from the non-controlling interest partner in BSA is interest bearing at 6% per annum, unsecured, and
is repayable only on a resolution of the Board of BSA or in the event that the company ceases business.
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Section D: Taxation
D1 Income Tax Expense
2019
$

2018
$

Current tax

(75,402)

(77,228)

Deferred tax

(126,236)

93,811

(201,638)

16,583

587,919

(513,590)

(176,376)

141,237

Non-deductible items

(6,969)

(28,731)

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions

34,408

(14,755)

Effect of change in tax rate

16,707

(6,342)

Overprovision from prior year

26,821

10,355

-

(25,549)

(117,830)

-

21,601

-

-

(59,632)

(201,638)

16,583

Before-tax amount

-

86,792

Tax (Expense) / Benefit

-

(19,924)

1,372,566

318,737

Tax (Expense) / Benefit

(411,770)

(87,653)

Net of tax amount

960,796

297,952

Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset has been recognised
(as recovery is not probable)

-

647,223

Potential tax benefit

-

145,000

Fixed assets

-

(6,613)

Potential tax benefit

-

(990)

-

(7,603)

9,117

12,246

(a) Income tax credit / (expense)

(b) Numerical reconciliation between tax benefit/(expense) and pre-tax net profit/(loss)
Profit/(Loss) before income tax benefit
Income tax credit/(expense) calculated at 30% (2018: 27.5%)
Effect on amounts which are not tax deductible:

De-recognition of deferred tax assets
Tax consolidation adjustments
Other
Deferred tax not brought to account
Income tax credit / (expense)
(c) Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income
Exchange differences on translating foreign controlled entities:

(d) Amounts recognised directly in equity
Share issue costs:
Before-tax amount

(e) Tax losses

(f) Unrecognised temporary differences
Temporary differences for which deferred tax assets have not been recognised:

(g) Current tax liabilities
Income tax payable
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D2 Deferred Tax Balances
Deferred tax balances are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows:
2019
$

2018
$

22,072

2,902

Property, Plant and Equipment

(8,440)

9,302

Payables, accruals and provisions

528,478

64,681

14

2,223

Carried forward tax losses

126,609

94,429

Capital costs deductible over five years

458,078

107,832

985

413

1,127,796

281,782

Receivables

-

-

Inventory

-

-

1,811

4,223

18,810

12,902

20,621

17,125

30%

27.5%

Singapore

17%

17%

Malaysia

24%

24%

United Kingdom

19%

19%

Deferred tax assets
Receivables

Inter-company loan

Other items

Deferred tax liabilities

Other items
Unrealised foreign exchange gains

D3 Tax Rates and Tax Consolidation
Australia

Tax consolidation legislation
Stealth Global Holdings Ltd and its wholly owned Australian controlled entities elected to enter the tax consolidation regime
from 1 July 2017. The accounting policy in relation to this legislation is set out in Section I.
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Section E: Capital Structure
E1 Issued Capital and Reserves
Summary

Balance at the beginning of the year
Ordinary shares – issued during the year
Less: Capital raising costs
Balance at the end of the year

2019
$

2018
$

118,340

349,424

13,920,000

-

(989,641)

(231,084)

13,048,699

118,340

Number of Shares
30 June 2019

Number of Shares
30 June 2018

Year ended
30 June 2019
$

Year ended
30 June 2018
$

10,526

10,606

(460,162)

(229,078)

21,289,474

-

-

-

850,000

-

170,000

-

Shares issued on conversion of preference shares

4,000,000

-

578,502

-

Shares issued – Heatleys Acquisition

6,250,000

-

1,250,000

-

62,500,000

-

12,500,000

-

Shares cancelled

-

(80)

-

-

Less: Capital raising costs

-

-

(989,641)

(231,084)

94,900,000

10,526

13,048,699

(460,162)

Number of Shares
30 June 2019

Number of Shares
30 June 2018

Year ended
30 June 2019
$

Year ended
30 June 2018
$

600,000

600,000

578,502

578,502

3,400,000

-

-

-

(4,000,000)

-

(578,502)

-

Shares cancelled

-

(600,000)

-

-

Shares issued

-

600,000

-

-

-

600,000

-

578,502

Expiry Date

Exercise Price

Number

27 Sept 2022

$0.25

4,994,737

Ordinary shares on issue

Balance at the beginning of the year
Sub-division
Shares issued to Chairman (Note E7)

Shares issued – IPO

Balance at the end of the year

Preference shares on issue

Balance at the beginning of the year
Share sub-division
Conversion of preference shares

Balance at the end of the year

Options
Details of options granted during the year.
Class
Unquoted options

No options were exercised during or since the end of the year.
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2019
$

2018
$

At the beginning of the period

51,484

15,252

Movements during the year

73,933

36,232

At the end of the period

125,417

51,484

-

-

Movements during the year

125,499

-

At the end of the period

125,499

-

Total Reserves

250,916

51,484

Reserves
Comprises of:
Foreign currency translation reserve

Option reserve
At the beginning of the period

Share-based payments reserve
The share-based payments reserve represents the value of options issued that the consolidated entity is required to include
in the consolidated financial statements. No gain or loss is recognised in the profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the consolidated entity’s own equity instruments.
Translation reserve
The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations where their functional currency is different to the presentation currency of the reporting entity.

E2 Dividends
There were no dividends paid or recommended during the financial year ended 30 June 2019 (2018: $nil).
Dividend Franking Credit
Consolidated

Franking credits available for subsequent reporting
periods based on a tax rate of 30% (2018 – 27.5%)

Parent

30/06/2019

30/06/2018

30/06/2019

30/06/2018

953,562

260,903

-

-

The above amounts are calculated from the balance of the franking account as at the end of the reporting period, adjusted for
franking credits and debits that will arise from the settlement of liabilities or receivables for income tax and dividends after the
end of the year.
The consolidated amounts include franking credits that would be available to the parent entity if distributable profits of
subsidiaries were paid as dividends.

E3 Accumulated Funds
2019
$

2018
$

Accumulated losses at the beginning of the period

(745,111)

(248,104)

Profit/(Loss) for the period

386,281

(497,007)

Transfer of Non-controlling Interest

134,524

-

(224,306)

(745,111)

2019
$

2018
$

-

-

Non-controlling interest in loss after tax

(134,524)

-

Non-controlling interest in share capital

906

-

(133,618)

-

Accumulated losses at the end of the period

E4 Non-controlling Interests

Balance at the beginning of the period

Balance at the end of the period
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E5 Earnings per Share
2019
$

2018
$

520,805

(497,007)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (Basic)

76,953,699

21,300,000

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (Diluted)

76,953,699

21,300,000

Basic Earnings Per Share (cents)

0.68

(2.33)

Diluted Earnings Per Share (cents)1

0.68

(2.33)

Profit used in the earnings per share calculation

1. The number of options on issue at 30 June 2019 is 4,994,737 (2018: Nil). These are not considered dilutive as the exercise price of the options exceeds the
average market price of the ordinary shares.

This is the first year that Stealth has been listed on the ASX. Post listing in October 2018 the Company had 94,900,000
shares on issue after raising capital to acquire the Heatleys Group. This was a significant acquisition and hence it should be
noted that the year on year comparisons of the statutory results are comparing different group structures.

E6 Commitments and Contingent Liabilities
2019
$

2018
$

963,214

152,852

72,647

112,558

-

-

1,035,861

265,410

Not later than one year

26,423

9,893

Later than one year but not later than five years

47,065

35,088

Minimum Lease Payments

73,488

44,981

Future finance charges

(5,040)

(4,532)

Recognised as a liability

68,448

40,449

Not later than one year

24,999

8,058

Later than one year but not later than five years

43,449

32,391

Minimum lease payments

68,448

40,449

(a) Operating lease commitments
Future operating lease rentals not provided for in the financial statements and payable:
Not later than one year
Later than one year but not later than five years
Greater than five years

(b) Finance lease commitments
Commitments in relation to finance leases are payable as follows:

The present value of finance lease liabilities is as follows:

Contingent liabilities
There are no contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2019.
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E7 Share Based Payments
Goods or services received or acquired in a share-based payment transaction are recognised as an increase in equity if
the goods or services were received in an equity-settled share-based payment transaction or as a liability if the goods and
services were acquired in a cash settled share-based payment transaction.
Key judgements and estimates - Share-based payment transactions
For equity-settled share-based transactions, goods or services received are measured directly at the fair value of the goods
or services received provided this can be estimated reliably. If a reliable estimate cannot be made the value of the goods or
services is determined indirectly by reference to the fair value of the equity instrument granted using an appropriate valuation
technique that takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option, the impact of dilution, the share price at grant
date and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk-free interest rate for the
term of the option.
(a) Share options granted
During the year 4,994,737 options were granted to brokers for capital raising services. The fair value of the options granted is
$125,000 based on the value of the service provided.
The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices of and movements in share options issued
during the year.
2019

2018

Number

Weighted average
exercise price
$

Number

Weighted average
exercise price
$

-

-

-

-

4,994,737

0.25

-

-

Forfeited during the year

-

-

-

-

Exercised during the year

-

-

-

-

Expired during the year

-

-

-

-

Outstanding at the end of year

4,994,737

0.25

-

-

Exercisable at the end of the year

4,994,737

0.25

-

-

Outstanding at the beginning of year
Granted during the year

The options outstanding at 30 June 2019 had an exercise price of $0.25. The weighted average remaining contractual life of
options outstanding at the end of the year was 3.25 years. The options are not subject to escrow.
(b) Shares granted
On successful completion of the IPO 850,000 Shares were issued to the Chairman, Mr Wharton, for services in relation to
the capital raising.. The shares were valued based on the share price at grant date (27 September 2018) at a share price of
$0.20. The fair value of the shares granted is $170,000 which is charged to equity.
Expenses arising from share-based payment transactions

Total expenses arising from share-based payment transactions recognised in the profit or loss during the period as part of
employee benefit expense were as follows:

Share based payment expense

2019
$

2018
$

-

-

All share based payment in the year were offset against share capital as capital raising costs.
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Section F: Group Structure
F1 Parent Entity Information
As at and throughout the financial year ended 30 June 2019, the parent and ultimate parent entity of the Group was Stealth
Global Holdings Ltd.
Summary financial information
The individual financial statements for the parent entity show the following aggregate amounts:
2019
$

2018
$

386,928

11,451

Non-current assets

12,374,907

1,211,068

Total assets

12,761,835

1,222,519

Current liabilities

183,865

1,367,364

Non-current liabilities

249,253

-

433,118

1,367,364

12,328,717

(144,845)

13,559,772

580,568

Accumulated losses

(527,709)

54,587

Business Combination Under Common Control Reserve

(828,845)

(780,000)

125,499

-

12,328,717

(144,845)

2019
$

2018
$

Loss for the period

(582,296)

(445,109)

Total comprehensive income

(582,296)

(445,109)

Financial position

Assets
Current assets

Liabilities

Total Liabilities
Net assets
Equity
Issued capital

Options Reserve
Total equity

Financial performance

Guarantees entered by the parent entity in relation to the debts of its subsidiaries
Stealth Global Holdings Ltd and the members of the Closed Group have entered a Deed of Cross Guarantee as described in
Note F4.
In addition, the Company entered a guarantee to provide financial support to Stealth Industries Sdn Bhd (Malaysian
Subsidiary) for a period of at least 12 months from the 8th August 2018.
No liability has been recognised by the parent entity or the group in relation to these guarantees.
Contingent liabilities of the parent entity
The parent entity is party to a cross guarantee and indemnity in relation to the Group’s borrowing arrangements, refer Note F4.
The parent had no other contingent liabilities at 30 June 2019.
Determining the parent entity financial information
The financial information for the parent entity has been prepared on the same basis as the consolidated financial statements,
except as set out below.
(i) Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture entities
Investments in subsidiaries and joint venture entities are accounted for at cost in the financial statements of Stealth Global
Holdings Ltd.
(ii) Tax consolidation legislation
Stealth Global Holdings Ltd and its wholly owned Australian controlled entities have implemented the tax consolidation
legislation. The head entity Stealth Global Holdings Ltd, and the controlled entities in the tax consolidated group account for
their own current and deferred tax amounts. These tax amounts are measured as if each entity in the tax consolidated group
continues to be a stand-alone taxpayer.
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In addition to its own current and deferred tax amounts, Stealth Global Holdings Ltd also recognises the current tax liabilities
(or assets) and the deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and unused tax credits assumed from controlled entities
in the tax consolidated group.
The entities have also entered into a tax sharing and funding agreement under which the wholly-owned entities fully
compensate Stealth Global Holdings Ltd for any current tax payable assumed and are compensated by Stealth Global
Holdings Ltd for any current tax receivable and deferred tax assets relating to unused tax losses or unused tax credits that are
transferred to Stealth Global Holdings Ltd under the tax consolidation legislation. The funding amounts are determined by
reference to the amounts recognised in the wholly owned entities’ financial statements.
The amounts receivable/payable under the tax sharing and funding agreement are due upon receipt of the funding advice
from the head entity. The head entity may also require payment of interim funding amounts to assist with its obligations to pay
tax instalments.
Assets or liabilities arising under tax funding agreements with the tax consolidated entities may be booked to an
intercompany loan account or paid in cash at the discretion of the Head Company.

F2 Controlled Entities
The following entities are subsidiaries of the parent entity, the results of which are included in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.
Country of
Incorporation

Entity interest
30 June 2019

Entity interest
30 June 2018

Australia

100%

100%

Stealth Global Industries (Australia) Pty Ltd

Australia

100%

100%

Stealth Industries Sdn Bhd

Malaysia

100%

100%

Singapore

100%

100%

Stealth Global Industries (UK) Limited

United Kingdom

100%

100%

Australian Workplace Services Pty Ltd

Australia

100%

100%

Heatleys Group Holdings Pty Limited

Australia

100%

-

Heatley Sales Pty Ltd

Australia

100%

-

United Kingdom

50%

-

Australia

100%

-

Date control
was gained

Contribution of
revenue to the Group

Contribution to
profit after tax from
ordinary activities
during the period

Heatleys Group Holdings Pty Limited

27 Sep 18

Nil

Nil

Heatley Sales Pty Ltd1

27 Sep 18

$39.5m

$1.82m

BSA Brands (UK) Limited (50% holding)2

15 Jan 19

$1.3m

$(0.3m)

09 May 19

$0.1m

Nil

Parent entity
Stealth Global Holdings Ltd
Controlled entities

Stealth Global Industries (Singapore) Pte Ltd

BSA Brands (UK) Limited
Industrial Supply Group Pty Ltd

Details of entities over which control has been gained during the period

Control gained over entities during the period

Industrial Supply Group Pty Ltd

1. 100% subsidiary of Heatleys Group Holdings Pty Limited.
2. This contribution to revenue and profit after tax represents 100% of BSA Brands (UK) Limited as their results are consolidated in the Group financial
statements and a Non-controlling interest is presented on the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Comprehensive Income

Stealth holds a 50% interest in BSA Brands (UK) Limited (BSA) and exercises control over the relevant activities through a
contractual arrangement with the joint venture partner. Consequently 100% of their results are consolidated in the Group
Financial Statements and a Non-Controlling Interest is recognised on the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Comprehensive Income. BSA is a new venture with Bisley Workwear, Australia’s number one industrial workwear brand, and
was established in March 2019 to distribute Bisley Workwear in the UK and West Africa.
Stealth commenced the integration of the Heatleys Group in October 2018, shortly after listing on the ASX. The contribution
from the Heatleys Group shown in the table above includes the 68 customers that transitioned from Stealth into the Heatleys
Group operations, along with the benefits of the supplier consolidation exercise undertaken since the acquisition date and is
stated before accounting for intercompany management fees charged by Stealth.
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Details of entities over which control has been lost during the period
No loss of control of entities occurred during the period.
Non-controlling Interests (NCI)
The following table sets out the summarised financial information for each subsidiary that has non-controlling interests.
Amounts disclosed are before intercompany eliminations.
2019
$

2018
$

2,174,465

-

174,912

-

2,349,377

-

978,931

-

1,640,127

-

Total Liabilities

2,619,058

-

Net Assets/(Liabilities)

(269,681)

-

1,811

-

(269,048)

-

(2,444)

-

(269,681)

-

(133,618)

-

BSA Brands (UK) Limited

Summarised statement of Financial Position
Current Assets
Non-current Assets
Total Assets
Current Liabilities
Non-current Liabilities

Share Capital
Accumulated Funds
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
Total Equity
Accumulated Non-Controlling Interest

The loss for the year from BSA Brands (UK) Limited was $269,048 (2018: n/a)
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F3 Business Combinations
Business Combination – Acquisition of Heatleys
Following the successful completion of the Company’s IPO, on 27 September 2018 Stealth completed the acquisition
and integration of Heatleys Group Holdings Pty Limited and its wholly owned subsidiary Heatley Sales Pty Ltd (combined:
Heatleys) into the Group.
The acquisition of Heatleys is highly complementary to the Group. The combination creates a global platform, supplying
and distributing products across Australia, Africa, the United Kingdom, Europe and Asia. It delivers immediate and ongoing
benefits in the form of an enhanced product range and service offering, a strengthened customer base, increased purchasing
power and additional operational efficiencies.
Details of the purchase consideration, goodwill and net assets of Heatleys are:
Purchase consideration:

$

Cash paid

7,750,000

Shares issued

1,250,000

Total purchase consideration

9,000,000

Fair value of assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the acquisition:
Cash and cash equivalents

61,464

Trade and other receivables

7,789,694

Inventories

4,581,184

Deferred tax asset

556,979

Other assets
Property, plant and equipment
Total Assets

1,100
326,943
13,317,364

Trade and other payables

(6,274,932)

Finance liabilities

(1,914,292)

Provisions – employee benefits

(989,184)

Provisions – other

(105,419)

Deferred tax liability

(513,416)

Total Liabilities

(9,797,243)

Net identifiable assets acquired

3,520,121

Goodwill – Heatleys acquisition

5,479,879

The fair value of the 6,250,000 ordinary shares issued as part of the consideration paid for Heatleys Group Holdings Pty
Limited was based on the Prospectus issue price of $0.20.
The goodwill arising on the Heatleys Group Holdings Pty Limited acquisition is not deductible for tax purposes.
Refer to section F2 for the contributed revenues and net profit of Heatleys.
Acquired receivables

The fair value of acquired trade and other receivables is $7,789,694. The gross contractual amount for trade and other
receivables due is $7,817,726, of which $28,032 is expected to be uncollectable.
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Business Combination – Acquisition of Industrial Supply Group Pty Ltd
Stealth completed the acquisition of Industrial Supply Group Pty Ltd (ISG) in May 2019. ISG is an industrial buying group,
providing Stealth with 27 new member-based trade store locations on the East Coast of Australia.
Business combinations are initially accounted for on a provisional basis. Details of the purchase consideration, provisional
goodwill and provisional net assets of ISG are:
Purchase consideration:

$

Cash paid

500,000

Deferred Settlement

500,000

Total purchase consideration

1,000,000

Fair value of Assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the acquisition:
Cash and cash equivalents

120,707

Trade and other receivables

227,206

Other assets

16,901

Total Assets

364,814

Trade and other payables

(274,095)

Provisions – employee benefits

(16,386)

Total Liabilities

(290,481)

Net identifiable assets acquired

74,333

Goodwill – ISG acquisition

925,667

If new information obtained within one year of date of acquisition about facts and circumstances that existed at the date of
acquisition identifies adjustments to the above amounts, or any additional provisions that existed at the date of acquisition,
then the accounting for the acquisition will be revised.
The goodwill arising on the Industrial Supply Group Pty Ltd acquisition is not deductible for tax purposes.
Refer to section F2 for the contributed revenues and net profit of ISG.
If the acquisitions of ISG and Heatleys had occurred on 1 July 2018, consolidated pro-forma revenue and net profit attributable
to owners of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2019 would have been $75,553,764 and $818,861 respectively.
Acquired receivables

The gross contractual amount and the fair value of acquired trade and other receivables is $227,206 and all are expected to
be collectable.
Purchase consideration – cash outflow
2019
$

2018
$

Total Cash Consideration

8,250,000

25,000

Less Deposit paid in FY18

(250,000)

-

8,000,000

25,000

(61,464)

-

Less Cash acquired ISG

(120,707)

-

Net cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiaries

7,817,829

25,000

Less Cash acquired Heatleys

There were no acquisitions in the year ended 30 June 2018, the $25,000 shown above is a deferred settlement from an
earlier acquisition.

F4 Deed of Cross Guarantee
Pursuant to ASIC Corporations (wholly owned companies) Instrument 2016/785, the wholly owned subsidiaries listed below
are relieved from the Corporations Act requirement to prepare and lodge financial reports and directors’ reports.
It is a condition of the Instrument that the Company and each of the subsidiaries enter a Deed of Cross Guarantee. The
effect of the Deed is that the Company guarantees to each creditor, payment in full of any debt in the event of winding up of
any of the subsidiaries under certain provisions of the Corporations Act. If a winding up occurs under other provisions of the
Corporations Act, the Company will only be liable if after six months any creditor has not been paid in full. The subsidiaries
have also given similar guarantees if the Company is wound up.
The subsidiaries became a party to the Deed on 6th June 2019.
62

Stealth Global Holdings Annual Report 2019

The following members of the group are parties to the deed of cross guarantee under which each company guarantees the
debts of the others, and these members are referred to as the Closed Group:
Stealth Global Holdings Ltd

Australia

Wholly owned Subsidiaries
Stealth Global Industries (Australia) Pty Ltd

Australia

Heatleys Group Holdings Pty Ltd

Australia

Heatley Sales Pty Ltd

Australia

Industrial Supply Group Pty Ltd

Australia

Australian Workplace Services Pty Ltd

Australia

(a) C
 onsolidated statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive income and summary of movements in
consolidated retained earnings
The above companies represent a ‘closed group’ for the purposes of the instrument, and as there are no other parties to
the deed of cross guarantee that are controlled by Stealth Global Holdings Ltd, they also represent the ‘extended closed
group’. Set out below is a consolidated statement of profit or loss, a consolidated statement of comprehensive income and a
summary of movements in consolidated retained earnings for the year ended 30 June 2019 of the Closed Group.
2019
$

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income
Continuing Operations
Sales revenue
Service revenue

58,584,621
251,862

Cost of sales

(45,035,963)

Gross Profit

13,800,520

Other income

322,894

Personnel expenses

(8,925,483)

Administration expenses

(2,799,457)

Occupancy expenses

(1,192,839)

Transaction costs

(218,683)

Depreciation and amortisation expense

(152,462)

Finance costs

(149,276)

Profit from continuing operations before income tax
Income tax expense
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

685,214
(282,336)
402,878

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

402,878
402,878

Summary of movements in consolidated retained earnings
Retained Earnings at the beginning of the financial period

30,719

Profit for the period

402,878

Retained Earnings at the end of the financial period

433,597
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(b) Consolidated balance sheet
Set out below is a consolidated balance sheet as at 30 June 2019 of the Closed Group.
2019
$

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

1,862,396

Trade and other receivables

13,316,005

Inventories
Other assets
Total Current Assets

5,638,328
546,812
21,363,541

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets

525,550
6,682,707
1,011,444

Investments

286,222

Other assets

1,700,214

Total Non-Current Assets

10,206,137

TOTAL ASSETS

31,569,678

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Financial liabilities
Provisions
Total Current Liabilities

14,517,117
1,849,230
987,954
17,354,301

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Provisions
Other liabilities
Total Non-Current Liabilities

292,025
20,621
221,754
73,182
607,582

TOTAL LIABILITIES

17,961,883

NET ASSETS

13,607,795

EQUITY
Issued capital

13,048,699

Accumulated funds

433,597

Reserves

125,499

TOTAL EQUITY
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Section G: Risk Management
G1 Estimates, Judgements and Errors
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with AASBs requires management to use judgement, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and hence the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The following table lists the areas where a higher degree of judgement or complexity was involved and
includes areas that have the potential to be materially adjusted in their presentation in the financial statements should those
estimates or assumptions be incorrect.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and any required revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.
(i) Taxation – estimation of current tax payable and current tax expense, and recognition of deferred tax assets

Section D

(ii) Business combinations – fair value of purchase consideration

Section F3

(iii) Goodwill – estimation of impairment

Section C7

(iv) Control of Subsidiaries – assessment of control for consolidation

Section F2

(v) Inventories – valuation of inventory

Section C4

(vi) Revenue Recognition – assessment of timing and transaction pricing, principal vs agent assessment

Section G1

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
Taxation

Balances disclosed in the financial statements and the notes thereto, related to taxation, are based on the best estimates of
Directors. These estimates consider both the financial performance and position of the Company as they pertain to current
income taxation legislation, and the Directors understanding thereof. No adjustment has been made for pending or future
taxation legislation. The current income tax position represents the Directors’ best estimate, pending an assessment by tax
authorities in relevant jurisdictions. Refer Note D Income Tax.
Deferred tax assets recognised only if it is probable that future taxable profits will be available for the carrying amount to be
recovered. Judgement is required by management to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future profits.
Business combinations

Business combinations are initially accounted for on a provisional basis. The fair value of assets acquired, liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed are initially estimated by the consolidated entity taking into consideration all available information at the reporting
date. Fair value adjustments on the finalisation of the business combination accounting is retrospective, where applicable, to the
period the combination occurred and may have an impact on the assets and liabilities, depreciation and amortisation reported.
Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired required an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which
goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the directors to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value. Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 30 June 2019 was $6,888,531 (30 June 2018: $463,652).
Control over subsidiaries

In determining whether the consolidated group has control over subsidiaries that are not wholly owned, judgement is
applied to assess the ability of the consolidated group to control the relevant activities of the partly owned subsidiary and its
economic outcomes. In exercising this judgement, the commercial and legal relationships that the consolidated group has
with other owners of partly owned subsidiaries are taken into consideration.
Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. In estimating net realisable values, management takes
into account the most reliable evidence available at the times the estimates are made.
Revenue Recognition – principal versus agent

A key judgement made by the directors in the sale of goods is that the entity acts as the principal rather than an agent for
contracted sales made to one of Stealth’s largest customers. The directors arrived at this conclusion on the basis that:
• the entity has primary responsibility for fulfilling the order from the customer; and
• the entity bears all the credit risk associated with the sale of goods.
On this basis the revenue recorded for goods is the gross amount billed.
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G2 Capital Risk Management
The Consolidated Entity manages its capital to ensure their ability to continue as a going concern and to achieve returns
to the shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders through the optimisation of debt and equity balance. The capital
structure of the Consolidated Entity is adjusted to achieve its goals whilst ensuring the cost of capital is optimised
Management monitors capital based on the gearing ratio (debt/total capital). The Consolidated Entity’s strategy is to optimise
its cost of capital, using capital markets and debt facilities, continuously monitoring interest rates with the provider of its
operating facility. The gearing ratios are as follows:
2019
$

2018
$

Total debt

1,641,255

40,449

Total equity

12,941,691

(575,287)

12.7%

(7.0%)

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio of the Company has changed from (7%) to 12.7%, primarily as a result of the use of the capital raised in the
IPO in October 2018.

G3 Financial Instruments and Risk Management
This note explains the Group’s financial instruments and its exposure to financial risks, how those risks are monitored and how
they could affect the Group’s future financial performance. Current year profit or loss information has been included where
relevant to add context to the note.
The Consolidated Entity’s principal financial instruments comprise bank and other loans, cash and short-term deposits. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Consolidated Entity’s operations.
The Consolidated Entity has various other financial instruments such as trade debtors and trade creditors, which arise directly
from its operations. It is, and has been throughout the period under review, the Consolidated Entity’s policy that no trading in
derivative instruments shall be undertaken.
The main risks arising from the Consolidated Entity’s financial instruments are interest rate risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency
risk and credit risk. The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.
Risk

Exposure arises from

Measurement

Management

Foreign currency risk

Future international commercial
transactions with suppliers and
customers

Cash flow forecasting

Foreign currency buffers built into
transactions

Financial assets, and liabilities
denominated in currencies other
than Australian dollars
Credit risk

Cash and cash equivalents, and
trade receivables

Monitoring group transactions by
currency
Sensitivity analysis
Credit reviews on establishing
commercial terms
Aging analysis

Evaluation of the use of hedging
and forward options

Monitoring of customer
performance within credit terms
offered

Interest rate risk

Borrowings at variable rates

Sensitivity analysis

Securing market rates at the time
of entering into contracts

Liquidity risk

Borrowings and other liabilities

Cashflow forecasting

Monitoring facility limits and
available headroom

Sensitivity analysis
In managing interest rate and currency risks, the Company endeavours to reduce the impact of short-term fluctuations on the
Company’s earnings. Over the longer term, permanent changes in foreign exchange and interest rates would have an impact on
consolidated earnings, although the extent of that impact will depend on the level of cash resources held by the Consolidated
Entity. A general increase of one percentage point in interest rates would not be expected to materially impact earnings.
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Foreign currency risk
The Consolidated Entity is exposed to foreign currency on sales, purchases and financial liabilities that are denominated in a
currency other than Australian Dollars. The currencies giving rise to this risk is primarily US dollars and Euro.
At reporting date, the Consolidated Entity had the following exposure to foreign currency that is not designated in cash
flow hedges:
2019
$AUD

2018
$AUD

Cash and cash equivalents (USD)

807,219

55,801

Cash and cash equivalents (EUR)

402,933

120,016

Cash and cash equivalents (MYR)

636

2,328

Cash and cash equivalents (SGD)

-

554

Cash and cash equivalents (ZAR)

151,675

2,692

Cash and cash equivalents (GBP)

13,298

40,483

1,375,761

221,874

Trade and other receivables (USD)

2,025,327

1,386,558

Trade and other receivables (EUR)

1,256,604

692,626

Trade and other receivables (MYR)

-

164

Trade and other receivables (ZAR)

94,174

86,036

Trade and other receivables (GBP)

800,217

120,564

4,176,322

2,285,948

Trade and other payables (USD)

2,264,727

1,011,412

Trade and other payables (EUR)

1,923,941

1,515,959

Trade and other payables (MYR)

524

4,820

Trade and other payables (SGD)

-

7,624

Trade and other payables (ZAR)

330,903

87,019

Trade and other payables (GBP)

495,650

113,658

5,015,745

2,740,492

-

540,203

Financial assets

Total

Total

Financial liabilities

Total

Prepayment and deferred settlement liabilities (USD)

The following sensitivity is based on the foreign currency risk exposures in existence at the reporting date.
At 30 June 2019, had the Australian Dollar moved, as illustrated in the table below, with all other variables held constant,
equity would have been affected as follows:
2019
$

2018
$

AUD/USD +20% - Equity increase/(decrease)

79,760

(16,180)

AUD/USD -20% - Equity increase/(decrease)

(79,760)

16,180

AUD/EUR +20% - Equity increase/(decrease)

(32,665)

(89,093)

AUD/EUR -20% - Equity increase/(decrease)

32,665

89,093

Judgements of reasonable possible movements:

At this stage, the Consolidated Entity does not seek to hedge this exposure.
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Credit risk
The credit risk arising on financial assets of the Consolidated Entity which have been recognised on the statement of financial
position is generally the carrying amount, net of any provision for impairment losses.
The Consolidated Entity continuously monitors credit risks arising from its trade receivables which are principally with significant
and reputable companies. It is the Consolidated Entity’s policy that credit verification procedures, that can include assessment
of credit ratings, financial position, experience and industry reputation, are performed on new customers that request credit
terms. Risk limits are set for each customer and regularly monitored. Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis
with the result that the Consolidated Entity’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.
The total credit risk exposure of the Consolidated Entity could be considered to include the difference between the carrying
amount of the receivable and the realisable amount. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of
each financial asset in the balance sheet. Details with respect to credit risk of trade and other receivables are provided in Section C3.
Interest rate risk
The Consolidated Entity’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates to the Consolidated Entity’s cash
holdings and its trade finance facilities.
Cash includes funds held in term deposits and cheque accounts during the year, which earned interest at rates ranging
between 0% p.a. and 1.5% p.a., depending on account balances (2018: 0% and 0.3%).
At reporting date, the Consolidated Entity had the following mix of financial assets and liabilities exposed to variable interest
rate risk that are not designated in cash flow hedges:
2019
$

2018
$

Cash and cash equivalents

2,005,765

265,585

Westpac facility

(1,572,807)

-

432,958

265,585

Financial assets

Total

The following sensitivity analysis is based on the interest rate risk exposures in existence at the reporting date.
At 30 June, if interest rates had moved, as illustrated in the table below, with all other variables held constant, pre-tax profit
and equity would have been affected as follows:
2019
$

2018
$

Pre-tax profit increase/(decrease)

4,330

2,656

Equity increase/(decrease)

4,330

2,656

Pre-tax profit increase/(decrease)

(4,330)

(2,656)

Equity increase/(decrease)

(4,330)

(2,656)

Judgements of reasonable possible movements:
+1% (100 basis points)

-1% (100 basis points)

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that the Consolidated Entity might encounter difficulty in settling its debts or
otherwise meeting its obligations related to financial liabilities due primarily to timing differences and demands on working
capital. The Consolidated Entity manages this risk through the following mechanisms:
1. preparing forward-looking rolling cash flow analyses in relation to its operational, investing and financing activities;
2. monitoring undrawn credit facilities;
3. obtaining funding from a variety of sources;
4. maintaining a reputable credit profile; and
5. managing credit risk related to financial assets.
Financing arrangements

The group has access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:

Westpac Facility, bank overdraft, interchangeable facility and credit card facility
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$

2018
$

5,834,244

664,629
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Maturities of financial liabilities and assets

The table below reflects an undiscounted contractual maturity analysis for financial liabilities and assets.
Within 1 Year

1 to 5 Years

Total

2019

2018

2019

2018

2019

2018

$

$

$

$

$

$

16,314,152

5,575,843

-

-

16,314,152

5,575,843

9,117

12,246

-

-

9,117

12,246

Borrowings

1,599,230

9,893

42,025

30,556

1,641,255

40,449

Other financial liabilities

250,000

540,203

955,329

-

1,205,329

540,203

Total contractual outflows

18,172,499

6,138,185

997,354

30,556

19,169,853

6,168,741

Total expected outflows

18,172,499

6,138,185

997,354

30,556

19,169,853

6,168,741

2,005,765

265,585

-

-

2,005,765

265,585

15,738,906

3,793,726

-

-

15,738,906

3,793,726

Total anticipated inflows

17,744,671

4,059,311

-

-

17,744,671

4,059,311

Net (outflow)/ inflow on financial
instruments

(427,828)

(2,078,874)

(997,354)

(30,556)

(1,425,182)

(2,109,430)

Consolidated
Financial liabilities due for payment
Trade and other payables
Current tax liabilities

Financial assets – cash flows realisable
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables

1

Note
1. Trade and other receivables excludes Income Tax receivable of $136,590 (2018: $nil)

The entity does not have any contractual outflow or inflow above 5 years for 2019 (2018: $nil).
Financial assets pledged as collateral

There are no financial assets that have been pledged as security for debt and their realisation into cash is not restricted.
Fair values

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the financial statements
approximates their fair values.
The following table details the fair value of financial assets and liabilities of the Consolidated Entity:
30 June 2019

30 June 2018

Carrying amount
$

Fair Value
$

Carrying amount
$

Fair Value
$

Cash and cash equivalents

2,005,765

2,005,765

265,585

265,585

Trade and other receivables

15,738,906

15,738,906

3,793,726

3,793,726

130,067

130,067

60,842

60,842

17,874,738

17,874,738

4,120,153

4,120,153

Trade and other payables

16,314,152

16,314,152

5,575,843

5,575,843

Deferred settlement liabilities

500,000

500,000

540,203

540,203

Borrowings

1,641,255

1,641,255

40,449

40,449

705,329

705,329

-

-

19,160,736

19,160,736

6,156,495

6,156,495

(1,285,998)

(1,285,998)

(2,036,343)

(2,036,343)

Financial assets

Other financial assets
Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities
Total financial liabilities

Net financial assets / (liabilities)
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Section H: Other Information
H1 Key Management Personnel Disclosures
Details of Key Management Personnel
(i) Directors

Michael Arnold – Group Managing Director
Christopher Wharton AM – Non-Executive Chairman
Giovanni Groppoli – Non-Executive Director
Peter Unsworth– Non-Executive Director (Appointed 03 July 2018)
(ii) Executives

Mr Luke Cruskall, Group Chief Operating Officer
Mr Brendan Rossiter, Chief Financial Officer
Mr Salvatore (Sam) Barbaro, Managing Director Heatleys (Heatleys acquisition on 27 September 2018)
Key Management Personnel compensation:
2019
$

2018
$

1,524,927

796,047

100,128

44,738

1,625,055

840,785

2019
$

2018
$

21,101

40,400

10,895

5,940

Deferred Settlement of share buy-back owing to Jamie Armitage a Director of Stealth
Industries Sdn Bhd

-

271,248

During the year the Consolidated Entity sold goods and services to Capital Drilling an entity
which Jamie Boyton is a Director

-

19,414,220

Trade and other receivables owing to the Consolidated Entity from Capital Drilling, an entity
which Jamie Boyton is a Director, as at end of the year

-

2,678,536

Customer prepayment from Capital Drilling an entity Jamie Boyton is a Director

-

268,956

2019
$

2018
$

119,469

-

-

26,500

119,469

26,500

35,904

-

-

4,703

Total remuneration for non-audit services

35,904

4,703

Total remuneration for audit and non-audit services

155,373

31,203

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits
Total KMP compensation

Related Party Transactions with Key Management Personnel

During the year the Company engaged Glen Forest Pty Ltd, in which John Groppoli is a
Director, to provide corporate and commercial consulting services, John Groppoli was
appointed a Director on 30 June 2018
Trade and other payables owing to Glen Forest Pty Ltd, in which John Groppoli is a Director,
from the Company as at end of the year

H2 Auditor’s Remuneration

Audit Services
BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd
Bentleys Audit & Corporate (WA) Pty Ltd
Total remuneration for audit services
Non-audit services:
Preparation of the Investigating Accountant’s Report by BDO Corporate Finance (WA) Pty
Ltd for inclusion in the Prospectus
Preparation of general-purpose report by Bentleys Audit & Corporate (WA) Pty Ltd

H3 Subsequent Events
Since the end of the financial year the Group has appointed two experienced executives, David Kiggins to the role of Group
Chief Financial Officer, and Philip Podgorski to the role of Group Chief Development Officer.
There has not arisen in the interval between the year end and the date of this report any item, transaction or event of a
material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the directors, to significantly affect the operations of the Group, the
results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Group in future financial years.
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Section I: Significant Accounting Policies
I1 New Accounting Standards
New, revised or amending Accounting Standards and Interpretations adopted
The Consolidated Entity has adopted all the new, revised or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by
the Australian Accounting Standards Board (‘AASB’) that are mandatory for the current reporting period. The adoption of
these Accounting Standards and Interpretations did not have any significant impact on the financial performance or position
of the Consolidated Entity during the financial year.
(i) Standards and interpretations affecting amounts reported in current period (and/or prior periods)

AASB 9 Financial Instruments – adopted early from 1 July 2017
The Consolidated Entity has early adopted AASB 9 Financial Instruments from 1 July 2017 which resulted in changes in
accounting policies. The standard replaces all previous versions of AASB 9 and completes the project to replace IAS 39
‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’. AASB 9 introduces new classification and measurement models for
financial assets. A financial asset shall be measured at amortised cost, if it is held within a business model whose objective is to
hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, which arise on specified dates and solely principal and interest. All other
financial instrument assets are to be classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss unless the entity makes an
irrevocable election on initial recognition to present gains and losses on equity instruments (that are not held-for-trading) in
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).
For financial liabilities, the standard requires the portion of the change in fair value that relates to the entity’s own credit risk
to be presented in OCI (unless it would create an accounting mismatch). New simpler hedge accounting requirements are
intended to more closely align the accounting treatment with the risk management activities of the entity. New impairment
requirements will use an Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model to recognise an allowance. Impairment will be measured under
a 12-month ECL method unless the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition in
which case the lifetime ECL method is adopted.
AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers – adopted in the year
AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers is applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018.When effective, this Standard will replace the current accounting requirements applicable to revenue with a single,
principles-based model. Apart from a limited number of exceptions, including leases, the new revenue model in AASB 15
will apply to all contracts with customers as well as non-monetary exchanges between entities in the same line of business to
facilitate sales to customers and potential customers.
The core principle of the Standard is that an entity will recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services
to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for the goods
or services.
The standard will require: contracts (either written, verbal or implied) to be identified, together with the separate performance
obligations within the contract; determine the transaction price, adjusted for the time value of money excluding credit risk;
allocation of the transaction price to the separate performance obligations on a basis of relative stand-alone selling price of
each distinct good or service, or estimation approach if no distinct observable prices exist; and recognition of revenue when
each performance obligation is satisfied.
The Consolidated Entity primarily generates revenue through the sale of retail products where the performance obligations
are satisfied upon delivery. As such, the adoption of the new standard at transition date 1 July 2018 did not have a significant
impact on the financial position or performance of the company.
New Accounting Standards and Interpretations not yet mandatory or early adopted
Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have recently been issued or amended but are not yet mandatory,
have not been early adopted by the Consolidated Entity for the annual reporting period ended 30 June 2019, except as
noted above. The Consolidated Entity’s assessment of the impact of these new or amended Accounting Standards and
Interpretations, most relevant to the Consolidated Entity, are set out below:
(i) Standards and interpretations affecting amounts reported in current period (and/or prior periods)

AASB 16 Leases
AASB 16 Leases was issued in February 2016 and is applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019 and has not been early adopted by the Consolidated Entity. The standard replaces AASB 117 Leases and will result in
almost all leases being recognised on the balance sheet, as the distinction between operating and finance leases is removed.
The only exceptions are short-term and low value leases.
Under the new standard, an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals are recognised.
EBITDA results will be improved as the operating expense is replaced by interest expense and depreciation in the profit or
loss under AASB 16. For classification within the statement of cash flows, the lease payments will be separated into both a
principal and interest component.
The standard will affect primarily the accounting for the Consolidated Entity’s operating leases, which include several
property leases in Australia and Malaysia and operating leases on motor vehicles and office equipment.
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Operating cash flows will increase under AASB 16 as the element of cash paid attributable to the repayment of principal will
be included in financing cash flow. The net increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalents will remain the same.
The transitional provisions of AASB 16 allow a lessee to either retrospectively apply the standard to comparatives in line
with AASB 108: Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors or recognise the cumulative effect of
retrospective application as an adjustment to opening equity on the date of initial application. The Board has not yet decided
on the method to be applied when the standard is first adopted in its financial statements for the year ending 30 June 2020.

I2 Significant Accounting Policies
Stealth Global Holdings Ltd (“Stealth” or “the Company”) is a limited company incorporated in Australia. The consolidated
financial report of the Company as at and for the year ended 30 June 2019 comprises the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Consolidated Entity”).
Basis of preparation
(i) Statement of compliance

The financial report is a general-purpose financial report which has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards (AAS) (including Australian Interpretations) adopted by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and
the Corporations Act 2001. The consolidated financial report of the Consolidated Entity complies with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and interpretations adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).
The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 27 September 2019.
(ii) Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
(iii) Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements of the Consolidated Entity are prepared on an accruals basis and are based on
historical costs except where otherwise stated.
(iv) Presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements of the Consolidated Entity are presented in Australian dollars.
(v) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that
currently are exercisable are considered. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. The accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed when necessary to align them with the policies adopted by the Consolidated Entity.
Non-controlling interests in equity and results of the entities that are controlled by the Company are shown as a separate
item in the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised gains and losses and inter-entity balances resulting from transactions with or between subsidiaries are eliminated
in full on consolidation.
(a) Foreign currency translation
The functional currency of each of the Consolidated Entity’s entities is measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which that entity operates. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is
the parent entity’s functional currency.
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency at the exchange rates ruling at the date of
the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate of exchange
ruling at the reporting date.
All differences in the consolidated financial report are taken to the profit & loss except for differences on foreign currency
borrowings that provide a hedge against a net investment in a foreign entity. These are taken directly to equity until the
disposal of the net investment, at which time they are recognised in the profit & loss.
Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those borrowings are also recognised in equity.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate
as at the date of the initial transaction.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined.
As at the reporting date the assets and liabilities of these overseas subsidiaries are translated into the presentation currency
of Stealth at the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date and the income statements are translated at the weighted
average exchange rates for the period where this rate approximates the rate at the date of the transaction.
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The exchange differences arising on the retranslation are taken directly to a separate component of equity.
On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to that foreign operation is
recognised in the profit & loss.
(b) Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when or as the Group transfers control of goods or services to a customer at the amount to which the
Group expected to be entitled. If the consideration promised includes a variable amount, the Group estimates the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled.
Sale of Goods

The Group generates revenue from the sale of goods, which is recognised at a point in time when the goods are delivered,
the legal title has passed and the customer has accepted the goods. The amount of revenue recognised for goods delivered
is adjusted by expected returns. Credit terms for product sales is 30 days.
Service Revenue

Revenue from the provision of services is recognised in the period in which the services are rendered. The performance
obligation is the supply of services over the contractual terms. The terms represent distinct contracted services that are
substantially the same with the same pattern of transfer, such that they would be recognised over time.
(c) Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are generally due for settlement within 30 days. They are presented as current assets unless
collection is not expected for more than 12 months after the reporting date.
Trade and other receivables are recognised at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less any allowance for
expected credit losses.
The Group assesses at each balance date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets
is impaired. For trade and other receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by AASB 9 to determine
any allowances for expected credit losses, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition
of the receivables. The expected credit losses on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience. The amounts held in trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets
and are not past due. Based on the credit history of these trade and other receivables, it is expected that the amounts will be
received when due.
The Group’s financial risk management objectives and policies are set out in Section G.
Due to the short-term nature of these receivables their carrying value is assumed to approximate their fair value. the effective
interest method, less any provision for impairment.
(d) Acquisition of assets
All assets acquired including plant and equipment and intangibles other than goodwill are initially recorded at their cost
of acquisition at the date of acquisition, being the fair value of the consideration provided plus incidental costs directly
attributable to the acquisition.
When equity instruments are issued as consideration, their market price at the date of acquisition is used as fair value.
Transaction costs arising on the issue of equity instruments are recognised directly in equity subject to the extent of proceeds
received, otherwise expensed.
(e) Business Combination
Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of assets transferred
by the Consolidated Entity, liabilities incurred by the Consolidated Entity to the former owners of the acquire and the
equity instruments issued by the Consolidated Entity in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:
• deferred tax assets or liabilities and assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with AASB 112 ‘Income Taxes’ and AASB 119 ‘Employee Benefits’ respectively;
• liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Consolidated Entity entered into to replace share-based payment arrangements of the acquire are
measured in accordance with AASB 2 ‘Share-based Payment’ at the acquisition date; and
• assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with AASB 5 ‘Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations’ are measured in accordance with that Standard.
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Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis
is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value or, when
applicable, on the basis specified in another Standard.
Where the consideration transferred by the Consolidated Entity in a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair
value. Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments
that arise from additional information obtained during the ‘measurement period’ (which cannot exceed one year from the
acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.
The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance
with AASB 139, or AASB 137 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’, as appropriate, with the corresponding
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
Where a business combination is achieved in stages, the Consolidated Entity ’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to its acquisition date fair value and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.
If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Consolidated Entity reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are recognised,
to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if known, would
have affected the amounts recognised as of that date.
(f) Goodwill
Goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is calculated as the excess of the sum of:
• the consideration transferred;
• any non-controlling interest; and
• the acquisition date fair value of any previously held equity interest;
over the acquisition date fair value of net identifiable assets acquired.
The acquisition date fair value of the consideration transferred for a business combination plus the acquisition date fair value
of any previously held equity interest shall form the cost of the investment in the separate financial statements.
Fair value uplifts in the value of pre-existing equity holdings are taken to the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Where changes in the value of such equity holdings had previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income, such amounts are recycled to profit or loss.
The amount of goodwill recognised on acquisition of each subsidiary in which the Consolidated Entity holds less than a 100%
interest will depend on the method adopted in measuring the non-controlling interest. The Consolidated Entity can elect in
most circumstances to measure the non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value (full goodwill method) or at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the subsidiary’s identifiable net assets (proportionate interest method).
In such circumstances, the Consolidated Entity determines which method to adopt for each acquisition and this is stated in
the respective notes to these financial statements disclosing the business combination.
Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill on acquisition of associates is included in
investments in associates.
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and is allocated to the Consolidated Entity ‘s cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units, representing the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored not larger than an operating segment.
Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill related to the entity disposed of.
Changes in the ownership interests in a subsidiary are accounted for as equity transactions and do not affect the carrying
amounts of goodwill.
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(g) Property, Plant and Equipment
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of assets may include the cost
of materials and direct labour, and any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for its
intended use, and the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located.
Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from
disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and are recognised net within “other income” in profit or loss.
Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is
probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Consolidated Entity and its cost can be
measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the profit & loss
as incurred.
Depreciation

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each of property, plant
and equipment. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably
certain that the Consolidated Entity will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. Land is not depreciated. Assets will be
depreciated once the asset is in the condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:
Building
10 years
Computer Equipment
2 - 5 years
Furniture & Fittings
5 years
Motor Vehicle
5 years
Office equipment
5 years
Plant & Equipment
5 years
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date.
Impairment

The carrying values of plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate
the carrying value may not be recoverable.
For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cashgenerating unit to which the asset belongs.
If any such indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets or cashgenerating units are written down to their recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment is the greater of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
(h) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
(i) Payables
Payables, including goods received and services incurred but not yet invoiced, are recognised at the nominal amount when
the Consolidated Entity becomes obliged to make future payments as a result of a purchase of assets or receipt of services.
(j) Goods and Services Tax
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except where the amount
of GST incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority. In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the
cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.
Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable
to, the tax office is included as a current asset or liability in the statement of financial position.
Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from
investing and financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the tax office are classified as operating cash flows.
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(k) Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories includes expenditure incurred
in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing
location and condition.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion
and selling expenses.
(l) Operating Leases
Operating leases and the leased assets are not recognised on the Consolidated Entity’s statement of financial position.
Payments made under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the profit and loss.
(m) Recoverable amount of assets
At each reporting date, the Consolidated Entity assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired.
Where an indicator of impairment exists, the Consolidated Entity makes a formal estimate of recoverable amount. Where
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the greater of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. It is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset’s value in use cannot be estimated to be close to its fair value less costs to sell and it does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case, the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
(n) Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received net of issue costs associated
with the borrowing.
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Amortised cost is calculated by considering any issue costs, and any discount or premium on settlement.
Gains and losses are recognised in the profit & loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the amortisation process.
(o) Investments in associates and joint ventures
An associate is an entity over which the Consolidated Entity has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies.
A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists
only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting, except when the investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held for sale, in
which case it is accounted for in accordance with AASB 5. Under the equity method, an investment in an associate or a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Consolidated Entity’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture. When
the Consolidated Entity’s share of losses of an associate or a joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate
or joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the Consolidated Entity discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Consolidated Entity has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate or joint venture.
An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of
the cost of the investment over the Consolidated Entity’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Consolidated Entity’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.
The requirements of AASB 9 are applied to determine whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect
to the Consolidated Entity ’s investment in an associate or a joint venture. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with AASB 136 ‘Impairment of Assets’ as a single asset
by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount,
any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with AASB 136 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

76

Stealth Global Holdings Annual Report 2019

The Consolidated Entity discontinues the use of the equity method from the date when the investment ceases to be an
associate or a joint venture, or when the investment is classified as held for sale. When the Consolidated Entity retains an
interest in the former associate or joint venture and the retained interest is a financial asset, the Consolidated Entity measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance
with AASB 9. The difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture at the date the equity method was
discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in the associate
or joint venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition,
the Consolidated Entity accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that
associate or joint venture on the same basis as would be required if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate
or joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Consolidated Entity
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is discontinued.
The Consolidated Entity continues to use the equity method when an investment in an associate becomes an investment in
a joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate. There is no re-measurement to fair
value upon such changes in ownership interests.
When the Consolidated Entity reduces its ownership interest in an associate or a joint venture but the Consolidated Entity
continues to use the equity method, the Consolidated Entity reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that
had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or
loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.
When a Consolidated Entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of the Consolidated Entity, profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognised in the Consolidated Entity’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not related to the Consolidated Entity.
(p) Financial instruments
In FY2018 the Group early adopted and prospectively applied all the measurement and recognition requirements of AASB 9:
Financial Instruments (December 2014), including consequential amendments to other standards, on 1 July 2017.
(i) Classification of financial instruments

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categories:
• those to be measured at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss); and
• those to be measured at amortised cost.
The classification depends on the Group’s business model for managing financial assets and the contractual terms of the
financial assets’ cash flows.
The Group classifies its financial liabilities at amortised cost unless it has designated liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss or is required to measure liabilities at fair value through profit or loss such as derivative liabilities.
(ii) Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Debt instruments
Investments in debt instruments are measured at amortised cost where they have:
• contractual terms that give rise to cash flows on specified dates, that represent solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding; and
• are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by holding to collect contractual cash flows.
These debt instruments are initially recognised at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs and subsequently
measured at amortised cost. The measurement of credit impairment is based on the three-stage expected credit loss model
described below in note (iii) Impairment of financial assets.
Financial assets measured at amortised cost are included in cash and cash equivalents.
(iii) Impairment of financial assets

A Trade and other receivables
The Group assesses at each balance date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets
is impaired. For trade and other receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by AASB 9 to determine
any allowances for expected credit losses, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition
of the receivables. The expected credit losses on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience. The amounts held in trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets
and are not past due. Based on the credit history of these trade and other receivables, it is expected that the amounts will be
received when due.
The Group’s financial risk management objectives and policies are set out in Note G3. Due to the short-term nature of these
receivables, their carrying value is assumed to approximate their fair value.
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B Other financial assets
The Group applies a three-stage approach to measuring expected credit losses (ECLs) for other financial assets that are not
measured at fair value through profit or loss:
• debt instruments measured at amortised cost and fair value through other comprehensive income;
• loan commitments; and
• financial guarantee contracts.
No ECL is recognised on equity investments.
Determining the stage for impairment
At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk for exposures since
initial recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring over the remaining expected life from the reporting date and the
date of initial recognition. The Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort for this purpose. This includes quantitative and qualitative information and, forward-looking analysis.
An exposure will migrate through the ECL stages as asset quality deteriorates. If, in a subsequent period, asset quality
improves and reverses any previously assessed significant increase in credit risk since origination, then the provision for
doubtful debts reverts from lifetime ECL to 12-months ECL. Exposures that have not deteriorated significantly since
origination are considered to have a low credit risk. The provision for doubtful debts for these financial assets is based on a
12-months ECL. When an asset is uncollectible, it is written off against the related provision. Such assets are written off after
all the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off reduce the amount of the expense in the income statement.
The Group assesses whether the credit risk on an exposure has increased significantly on an individual or collective basis.
For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial instruments are grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, taking into account instrument type, credit risk ratings, date of initial recognition, remaining term to maturity,
industry, geographical location of the borrower and other relevant factors.
(iv) Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

A financial asset or financial liability is recognised in the balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument, which is generally on trade date. Loans and receivables are recognised when cash is advanced
(or settled) to the borrowers.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised initially at fair value. All other financial assets are recognised
initially at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs.
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual cash flows from the asset expire or it transfers its rights to
receive contractual cash flows from the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are transferred. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Group is recognised as
a separate asset or liability.
A financial liability is derecognised from the balance sheet when the Group has discharged its obligation or the contract is
cancelled or expires.
(v) Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the balance sheet when the Group has a legal
right to offset the amounts and intends to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
(q) Employee benefits
Liabilities for employee benefits for wages, salaries and annual leave represent present obligations resulting from employees’
services provided to reporting date, calculated at undiscounted amounts based on remuneration, wage and salary rates
that the Consolidated Entity expects to pay as at reporting date including related on-costs, such as workers compensation
insurance and payroll tax.
(r) Income tax
Income tax expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income relates to current tax and
deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly
in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.
Current tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and amounts used for taxation purposes.
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Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary differences:
i. the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and
ii. differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities to the extent that it is probable that they
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse,
based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and
they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on a different tax entities, but they
intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.
A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.
The Company and its subsidiaries do not have any unused tax losses as at the reporting date, Note D1 (d).
Tax Consolidation
Stealth Global Holdings Ltd and its wholly owned Australian controlled entities have implemented the tax consolidation
legislation. The head entity Stealth Global Holdings Ltd, and the controlled entities in the tax consolidated group account for
their own current and deferred tax amounts. These tax amounts are measured as if each entity in the tax consolidated group
continues to be a stand-alone taxpayer.
In addition to its own current and deferred tax amounts, Stealth Global Holdings Ltd also recognises the current tax liabilities
(or assets) and the deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and unused tax credits assumed from controlled entities
in the tax consolidated group.
The entities have also entered into a tax sharing and funding agreement under which the wholly-owned entities fully
compensate Stealth Global Holdings Ltd for any current tax payable assumed and are compensated by Stealth Global
Holdings Ltd for any current tax receivable and deferred tax assets relating to unused tax losses or unused tax credits that are
transferred to Stealth Global Holdings Ltd under the tax consolidation legislation. The funding amounts are determined by
reference to the amounts recognised in the wholly owned entities’ financial statements.
The amounts receivable/payable under the tax sharing and funding agreement are due upon receipt of the funding advice
from the head entity. The head entity may also require payment of interim funding amounts to assist with its obligations to pay
tax instalments.
Assets or liabilities arising under tax funding agreements with the tax consolidated entities may be booked to an
intercompany loan account or paid in cash at the discretion of the Head Company.
(u) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Consolidated Entity has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for
which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and, that outflow can be reliably measured.
Provisions are measured using the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period.
(v) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits available on demand with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with maturities of 3 months or less.
(w) Comparative figures
This report relates to the year ended 30 June 2019. Comparatives are for the year ended 30 June 2018.
(x) Fair value of assets and liabilities
The Consolidated Entity measures some of its assets and liabilities at fair value on either a recurring or non-recurring basis,
depending on the requirements of the applicable Accounting Standard.
Fair value is the price the Consolidated Entity would receive to sell an asset or would have to pay to transfer a liability in an orderly
(i.e. unforced) transaction between independent, knowledgeable and willing market participants at the measurement date.
As fair value is a market-based measure, the closest equivalent observable market pricing information is used to determine
fair value. Adjustments to market values may be made having regard to the characteristics of the specific asset or liability.
The fair values of assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market are determined using one or more valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise, to the extent possible, the use of observable market data.
To the extent possible, market information is extracted from either the principal market for the asset or liability (i.e. the market
with the greatest volume and level of activity for the asset or liability) or, in the absence of such a market, the most advantageous
market available to the entity at the end of the reporting period (i.e. the market that maximises the receipts from the sale of the
asset or minimises the payments made to transfer the liability, after taking into account transaction costs and transport costs).
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For non-financial assets, the fair value measurement also considers a market participant’s ability to use the asset in its highest
and best use or to sell it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
The fair value of liabilities and the entity’s own equity instruments (excluding those related to share-based payment
arrangements) may be valued, where there is no observable market price in relation to the transfer of such financial
instruments, by reference to observable market information where such instruments are held as assets. Where this
information is not available, other valuation techniques are adopted and, where significant, are detailed in the respective note
to the financial statements.
Valuation techniques

In the absence of an active market for an identical asset or liability, the Consolidated Entity selects and uses one or more
valuation techniques to measure the fair value of the asset or liability, The Consolidated Entity selects a valuation technique that
is appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is available to measure fair value. The availability of sufficient
and relevant data primarily depends on the specific characteristics of the asset or liability being measured. The valuation
techniques selected by the Consolidated Entity are consistent with one or more of the following valuation approaches:
Market approach: valuation techniques that use prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions for
identical or similar assets or liabilities.
Income approach: valuation techniques that convert estimated future cash flows or income and expenses into a single
discounted present value.
Cost approach: valuation techniques that reflect the current replacement cost of an asset at its current service capacity.
Each valuation technique requires inputs that reflect the assumptions that buyers and sellers would use when pricing the asset
or liability, including assumptions about risks. When selecting a valuation technique, the Consolidated Entity gives priority
to those techniques that maximise the use of observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. Inputs that are
developed using market data (such as publicly available information on actual transactions) and reflect the assumptions that
buyers and sellers would generally use when pricing the asset or liability are considered observable, whereas inputs for which
market data is not available and therefore are developed using the best information available about such assumptions are
considered unobservable.
Fair value hierarchy

AASB 13 requires the disclosure of fair value information by level of the fair value hierarchy, which categorises fair value
measurements into one of three possible levels based on the lowest level that an input that is significant to the measurement
can be categorised into as follows:
Level 1
Measurements based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date.
Measurements based on inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly.
Level 2
Measurements based on inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly.
Level 3
Measurements based on unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
The fair values of assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market are determined using one or more valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise, to the extent possible, the use of observable market data. If all significant
inputs required to measure fair value are observable, the asset or liability is included in Level 2. If one or more significant
inputs are not based on observable market data, the asset or liability is included in Level 3.
The Consolidated Entity would change the categorisation within the fair value hierarchy only in the following circumstances:
(i) if a market that was previously considered active (Level 1) became inactive (Level 2 or Level 3) or vice versa; or
(ii) if significant inputs that were previously unobservable (Level 3) became observable (Level 2) or vice versa.
When a change in the categorisation occurs, the Consolidated Entity recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy
(i.e. transfers into and out of each level of the fair value hierarchy) on the date the event or change in circumstances occurred.
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Directors’ Declaration
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019
Stealth Global Holdings Ltd and its controlled entities
ACN 615 518 020

The directors of the company declare that:
1. The financial statements, comprising the consolidated statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of financial position, consolidated statement of cash flow, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
accompanying notes are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 and:
(a) Comply with Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001 and other mandatory professional
reporting requirements after 2001; and
(b) Give a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2019 and of its performance for
the year ended on that date.
2. In the directors’ opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its debts as and when
they become due and payable.
3. In the directors’ opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that the members of the extended closed group
identified in Note F4 will be able to meet any obligations or liabilities to which they are, or may become, subject by virtue of
the deed of cross guarantee described in Note F4.
4. The directors have been given the declarations by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer as required by
section 295A.
5. The company has included in the notes to the financial statements an explicit and unreserved statement of compliance
with International Financial Reporting Standards.
This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors and is signed for and on behalf of the
directors by.

Michael Arnold
Group Managing Director
Perth, 27 September 2019
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Auditor’s Independence Declaration
Tel: +61 8 6382 4600
Fax: +61 8 6382 4601
www.bdo.com.au

38 Station Street
Subiaco, WA 6008
PO Box 700 West Perth WA 6872
Australia

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE BY GLYN O’BRIEN TO THE DIRECTORS OF STEALTH GLOBAL
HOLDINGS LTD
As lead auditor of Stealth Global Holdings Ltd for the year ended 30 June 2019, I declare that, to the
best of my knowledge and belief, there have been:
1.

No contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in
relation to the audit; and

2.

No contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

This declaration is in respect of Stealth Global Holdings Ltd and the entities it controlled during the
period.

Glyn O’Brien
Director

BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd
Perth, 27 September 2019

BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd ABN 79 112 284 787 is a member of a national association of independent entities which are all members of BDO Australia Ltd ABN 77 050 110 275,
an Australian company limited by guarantee. BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd and BDO Australia Ltd are members of BDO International Ltd, a UK company limited by guarantee, and
form part of the international BDO network of independent member firms. Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Tel: +61 8 6382 4600
Fax: +61 8 6382 4601
www.bdo.com.au

38 Station Street
Subiaco, WA 6008
PO Box 700 West Perth WA 6872
Australia

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of Stealth Global Holdings Ltd

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report
Opinion
We have audited the financial report of Stealth Global Holdings Ltd (the Company) and its subsidiaries
(the Group), which comprises the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2019, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the financial report, including a summary of significant accounting policies and the directors’
declaration.
In our opinion the accompanying financial report of the Group, is in accordance with the Corporations
Act 2001, including:
(i)

Giving a true and fair view of the Group’s financial position as at 30 June 2019 and of its
financial performance for the year ended on that date; and

(ii)

Complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial
Report section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Corporations
Act 2001 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s
APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the
financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code.
We confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which has been
given to the directors of the Company, would be in the same terms if given to the directors as at the
time of this auditor’s report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial report of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial report as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters.

BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd ABN 79 112 284 787 is a member of a national association of independent entities which are all members of BDO Australia Ltd ABN 77 050 110 275,
an Australian company limited by guarantee. BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd and BDO Australia Ltd are members of BDO International Ltd, a UK company limited by guarantee, and
form part of the international BDO network of independent member firms. Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.
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Impairment testing of goodwill
Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our report

Note C7 to the financial report discloses the
carrying amount of goodwill and the
assumptions used by the Group in testing the
goodwill for impairment.

Our procedures included, but are not limited to
the following:

As required by the Australian Accounting
Standards, the Group performed an annual
impairment test for each cash generating unit
(CGU) to which goodwill has been allocated to
determine whether the recoverable amount is
below the carrying amount as at 30 June 2019.
This was determined to be a key audit matter
as management’s assessment of the
recoverability of the goodwill is supported by
a value in use (VIU) cash flow forecast which
requires estimates and judgements about
future performance.

·

Evaluating the Group’s categorisation of cash
generating units (“CGUs”) and the allocation
of goodwill to the carrying value of CGUs
based on our understanding of the Group’s
business;

·

Evaluating
management’s
ability
to
accurately forecast cash flows by assessing
the precision of the current year actuals
against forecasted outcomes;

·

Challenging key inputs used in the value in
use calculations including the following:

These include significant judgements when
estimating future cash flows particularly in
respect to determining the appropriate:
·

future growth rates;

·

discount rates; and

·

terminal growth rates;

·
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o

Testing the mathematical accuracy of the
cash flow models;

o

Assessing the discount rate used by
involving internal valuation experts and
comparing them to market data and
industry research;

o

Comparing growth rates with third party
industry data;

o

Comparing the Group’s forecast cash
flows to the board approved budget; and

o

Performing sensitivity analysis on the
growth and discount rates.

Evaluating the adequacy of the related
disclosures in the financial report.
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Accounting for business acquisition
Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our report

During the financial year ended 30 June
2019 the Group acquired two businesses
being Heatleys Group Holdings Pty Ltd and
of Industrial Supply Group as disclosed in
Note F3.

Our procedures included, but are not limited to:

The accounting for these acquisition’s is a
key audit matter due to the significant
judgment and complexity involved in
assessing the determination of the fair
value of assets and liabilities acquired and
the final purchase price.

·

Reading the purchase and sale agreement to
understand the terms and conditions of the
acquisition and evaluating management's
application of the relevant accounting
standards;

·

Challenging the methodology and
assumptions utilised to identify and
determine the fair value of the assets and
liabilities acquired;

·

Assessing managements determination of
total consideration by agreeing amounts to
underlying data including contracts and
settlement statements; and

·

Assessing the adequacy of the Group’s
disclosures of the acquisition.

Other information
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 30 June 2019, but does not include the
financial report and the auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
report or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of the directors for the Financial Report
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a
true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the ability of the group to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Report
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report is located at the
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board website (http://www.auasb.gov.au/Home.aspx) at:
http://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar1.pdf
This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Report on the Remuneration Report
Opinion on the Remuneration Report
We have audited the Remuneration Report included in pages 29 to 37 of the directors’ report for the
year ended 30 June 2019.
In our opinion, the Remuneration Report of Stealth Global Holdings Ltd, for the year ended 30 June
2019, complies with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.
Responsibilities
The directors of the Group are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Remuneration
Report in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on the Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in accordance with Australian
Auditing Standards.

BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd

Glyn O’Brien
Director

Perth, 27 September 2019
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ASX Additional Information - Shareholdings
Details of securities as at 31 August 2019
Top holders
The 20 largest registered holders of fully paid ordinary shares as at 31 August 2019 were:
Fully paid ordinary shares
Name

No. of Shares

%

1.

National Nominees Limited

16,414,256

17.30

2.

Capital Drilling (Mauritius) Ltd

11,558,902

12.18

3.

Sorrento200 Holdings Pty Ltd <Sorrento200 Holdings A/C>

10,117,803

10.66

4.

Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited

7,945,000

8.37

5.

Tyrone Australia Pty Limited

6,876,000

7.25

6.

Rosefield Asset Pty Ltd <Stephen Robert Bushell A/C>

5,058,902

5.33

7.

Custom Assets Pty Ltd

5,000,000

5.27

8.

Salvatore Barbaro + Lynette Margaret Barbaro <Sam Barbaro Family A/C>

1,405,250

1.48

9.

Nicarldon Pty Ltd

1,160,000

1.22

10.

Terraus Pty Ltd <Tomandel Family A/C>

1,100,000

1.16

11.

Giovanni Groppoli <The Milo A/C>

1,064,393

1.12

12.

Molonglo Pty Ltd <P & J Hutchinson S/F A/C>

1,000,000

1.05

13.

Annlew Investments Pty Ltd <Annlew Investments PL SF A/C>

800,000

0.84

14.

Merrill Lynch (Australia) Nominees Pty Limited

758,517

0.80

15.

Mr Anthony John Power + Mrs Susan Janet Power <The Power Super Fund A/C>

700,000

0.74

16.

Mr Johnathon Matthews

564,046

0.59

17.

Byrne Holdings Pty Ltd

500,000

0.53

18.

JG Super(WA) Pty Ltd

500,000

0.53

19.

PCAS (Australia) Pty Ltd <PCAS Investment A/C>

500,000

0.53

20.

Leslie Roy Eaton + Judith Eaton <L & J Eaton Family A/C>

468,750

0.49

73,491,819

77.44

Distribution schedule
A distribution schedule of each class of equity security as at 31 August 2019.
Fully paid ordinary shares
Range

Holders

Units

%

1

-

1,000

3

209

0.00

1,001

-

5,000

5

18,675

0.02

5,001

-

10,000

49

479,130

0.50

10,001

-

100,000

181

8,225,674

8.67

100,001

-

Over

86

86,176,312

90.81

324

94,900,000

100.00

Total

Restricted securities
Fully paid ordinary shares
Number of Shares

Escrow Period

22,150,000

Restricted securities until 2 October 2020
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Substantial shareholders
The names of substantial shareholders and the number of shares to which each substantial shareholder and their associates
have a relevant interest, as disclosed in substantial shareholding notices given to the Company, are set out below:
Substantial shareholder

Number of Shares

Capital Drilling (Mauritius) Ltd

11,558,902

IOOF Holdings Limited

11,492,513

Michael Alan Arnold

10,605,303

Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited

7,685,500

Tyrone Australia Pty Limited

6,876,000

Rosefield Asset Pty Ltd <Stephen Robert Bushell A/C>

5,058,902

Unquoted securities
Options
Class

Expiry Date

Broker Options

27 September 2022

Exercise Price ($)

Number of Options

Number of holders

0.25

4,994,737

2

The holders of these unlisted options as at 31 August 2019 were:
Name of holder

Number of Options

%

Argonaut Investments Pty Limited (Argonaut Invest No 3 A/C>

2,497,369

50.00

Zenix Nominees Pty Ltd

2,497,368

50.00

Unmarketable parcels
Holdings less than a marketable parcel of ordinary shares (being 5,618 as at 31 August 2019):
Holders

9

Units

24,384

Voting Rights
The voting rights attaching to ordinary shares are:
On a show of hands every holder of ordinary shares present at a meeting in person or by proxy, is entitled to one vote, and
upon a poll each share is entitled to one vote.
Options do not carry any voting rights.
On-Market Buy Back
There is no current on-market buy-back.
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